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Nichicon develops, manufactures, and sells capacitors and other 

electronic components essential for a broad range of electronic devices. 

We expanded the size of our business in line with advances in electronic 

technology since we started manufacturing capacitors for a 

receiving/transforming electricity facility in Kusatsu, Shiga Prefecture, in 

1950. Currently, we have three product sectors: capacitors for electronics, 

circuit products, and capacitors for electric apparatus and power 

utilities/others. We strive to strengthen our competitiveness by focusing 

management resources on the high priority markets of information and 

telecommunications-related devices, digital home appliances, automotive 

devices, and inverter-equipped products.

As a valued supplier for our customers, we provide strong technology 

development capabilities, maintain close relationships with customers 

based on a global product and sales system, and pursue the highest level 

of customer satisfaction.

Cover sheet:

By the end of the previous business year, we had 
completed structural reform of the organization 
and are now ready to move forward. The 
current year is positioned as the first year for a 
new great leap forward. We will conduct 
business aggressively and strengthen our core 
business by reinforcing the global production 
and supply systems, as well as by focusing on 
high priority markets. As a result, the fruits of 
our structural reform will include expanded 
sales of differentiated and high value-added 
products and improvements in our operational 
achievements.
        The photograph on the cover sheet 
expresses the Nichicon group as growing and 
aiming for a better future.
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NICHICON CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Years ended March 31

Financial highlights

Forward Looking Statements

Projections of operating results and changes in the operating environment are based on information available to management at the time this report was prepared. As such, these projections 
entail risks and uncertainties. Readers should be aware that actual results and events may differ substantially from these projections.

Net Income (Millions of Yen) Total Assets (Millions of Yen)

¥   110,071
7,664
6,946
3,302
8,098

13,212

155,084
118,505

 ¥       40.57
13.00

1,483.68

76.4%
2.8

¥   105,892
5,080
5,333
2,988

16,046
14,619

157,546
119,825

 
¥       36.88

13.00
1,483.04

76.1%
    2.5   

¥   121,201
10,280
11,898

6,703
25,929
13,026

174,901
119,603

 
¥       80.06

13.00
1,453.78

68.4%
  5.7 

$  973,231
59,039
59,406
38,063

115,651
82,345

1,457,364
1,140,829

$        0.48
0.14

14.54

78.3%
3.4    

2003

¥   104,096
6,314
6,354
4,071

12,370
8,808

155,879
122,024

¥       51.46
15.00

1,555.42

78.3%
3.4

For the year :
Net sales .....................................................

Operating income .......................................

Income before income taxes and minority interest ....

Net income..................................................

Capital expenditures...................................

Depreciation and amortization....................

At year-end :
Total assets.................................................

Shareholders’ equity...................................

Per share of common stock :
Net income (yen) .........................................

Cash dividends (yen)...................................

Shareholders’ equity (yen) ..........................

Shareholders’ equity ratio...........................

Ratio of net income to shareholders’ equity......

2005

¥   100,849
4,618
5,484
2,191
2,564
9,737

145,511
117,883

¥       27.28
13.00

1,502.66

81.0%
1.9

2002 2001

Notes: 1. Amounts less than 1 mill ion yen have been rounded off.
2. The U.S.dollar amounts are provided solely for convenience at the rate of ¥106.96 to U.S. $1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2005.
3. Certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have been made to conform with current classifications.

2004 2005
Millions of Yen

 Yen U.S. dollars

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Net Sales (Millions of Yen) 

Total Shareholders’ Equity (Millions of Yen)Net Income per Share (Yen)Operating Income (Millions of Yen)
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The domestic economy in the current year (ended March 31, 
2005) followed a slow process of recovery owing to a 
recovery in corporate earnings in the first half of the year, 
mainly in the manufacturing industry and in the expansion 
of private capital investment. Also in the overseas regions, 
the economy in the USA developed steadily. The economies 
in the Asian countries, especially in China, showed a trend 
toward steady expansion. However, at the start of the 
second half of the year, growth in the US and Chinese 
economies began to show signs of stagnation, owing to a 
steep rise in material prices caused by a sudden increase in 
crude oil prices, as well as the trend for inventory 
adjustment in IT products, including cellular phones, etc. 
These factors consequently decelerated the speed of growth 
in production and exports so that the tempo of expansion 
became gradual throughout the entire world economy.

In the electronics/electrical industry, digital consumer 
electronics was the engine of growth in the market for the 
first half of the year, and the demand for flat-screen TVs 
and DVD players and recorders expanded with the 
synergistic effect of the Olympics. However, at the 
beginning of the second half of the year, market trends 
showed signs of deceleration affected by production 
adjustments.

Under these management circumstances, our group, with 
the management strategy of selection and concentration, 
promoted an efficient management style by combining the 

Based on the results of our structural reforms and 
streamlined management style, we will try to improve 
corporate value further and chart a course for growth.
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Production/sales system in the four top priority 
fields were upgraded and expanded

Achievements during the period ended March 31, 2005

To our shareholders

President & C.E.O.
NICHICON CORPORATION

Ippei Takeda



forces of our companies, based on our achievement in 
structural reform (executed by the end of the previous 
business term), such as the unification and reorganization of 
production bases and business establishments.

Among other things, we worked hard to expand the 
production base and strengthen the sales base in order to 
reinforce and construct a global system for our group’s core 
businesses of aluminum electrolytic capacitors, tantalum 
electrolytic capacitors, circuit products, and capacitors for 
electric apparatus and power utilities/others.

Overseas, Nichicon Electronics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. began 
to produce tantalum electrolytic capacitors in October 2004 
in order to handle the increasing demand in the Asian 
market. This accomplishment pushed the size of our group’s 
combined tantalum capacitor business to the top of the class 
in the industry. By adding Nichicon Electronics (Wuxi) Co.,  
Ltd., which produces aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 
circuit products, to our group, we completed a production 
system in China for our three top priority products.

On the other hand, domestically, we not only made a 
capital investment in the Ohmachi Factory, a production 
base for electrode foil for aluminum electrolytic capacitors, 
in order to significantly reinforce production capacity, but 
also aimed to further strengthen our technical capabilities 
and cost competitiveness.

Additionally, we made capital investments of 12.37 
billion yen in the current year, focusing on R&D and 
increased production in the four top priority sectors. We did 
this with a view towards the long-term reinforcement of the 
group as a whole.

As you have seen, we strengthened our corporate 
competitiveness further during the current year and 
improved the level of customer satisfaction by making an 
aggressive investment for the future from the viewpoint of 
selection and concentration, as well as by planning the 
acceleration of new product development. As a result, sales 
of differentiated merchandise and high value-added 
products expanded, and our consolidated sales amounted to 
104,096 million yen (3.2% up from the previous period).

Regarding profits, we were affected by the strong yen 
and the fall of selling prices from the start of the second half 
of the year, and the higher cost caused by the steep rise in 
material prices. However, our efforts to execute the 
strategies for improvements in profitability, such as 
reduction of fixed costs, cost down due to improved 
productivity, etc., enabled us to have a consolidated 
operating income of 6,314 million yen (36.7% up from the 
previous period), and a net income of 4,071 million yen 
(85.8% up from the previous period). These large-scale 
increases were achieved by the structural reform our group 
executed by the end of the previous period. We believe this 
is evidence that our organizational preparation to advance 
forward has been finally completed.

In order to produce greater achievements through 
structural reform and to make a greater leap forward, our 
group started, from this period, a variety of programs to 
reinforce our business capabilities, such as training sales 
persons to innovate their business style. This is an approach 
to address market needs where the changes in the business 

5

Achieved large-scale increase in profits as a 
result of our structural reform

Nichicon Electronics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. has 
been operational since October 2004.



environment are often bewildering and to adapt to those 
changes as much as possible. While grasping current needs, 
we also focused on a business philosophy to closely work 
with our customers in developing products to meet their 
needs. The storage-type, solar photovoltaic system that 
employs electric double layer capacitors, and equipment 
that  compensates for momentary voltage reduction are 
examples of our continued new developments. In addition, 
as a part of our efforts to reinforce organizational strength, 
we restructured our organization into a five headquarters 
system in October 2004. With of the goal of further 
clarifying our responsibilities, we added a production 
headquarters to our four conventional headquarters of 
administrative management, sales, technical & engineering, 
and corporate planning.

Key words for all of these various measures are speed 
and information. At the new corporate headquarters 
building completed in November 2004, the unification of 
information is realized by making good use of IT. We can 
now receive and analyze worldwide information instantly 
and make business decisions sooner and more flexibly than 
ever before. Furthermore, since both the headquarters and 
domestic sales offices obtained ISO 9001 certification, we 
can say that a system to promote such strategies as high 
quality products, business improvement, an upward spiral 
and  strengthening the target control, have been completed.

Overseas, we focused on the Asian market, mainly in China, 
consecutively from the previous period to deeply cultivate 
the market. As a result and with the help of sales increases 
in our products for cellular phones, the Asian market (excl. 
Japan) showed a sales ratio of 37.9% (0.5 percentage points 
up from the previous period) in total sales. 

In the European market, sales improved due to the 
increase in demand for automotive-electronics products. 
Sales amounted to 5,647 million yen (6.5% up from the 
previous period). Since we anticipate increased demand for 
the European market in the future, additional efforts are 
being directed into this area. 

The overseas sales ratio for current consolidated sales 
was 53.9% and remained almost at the same level as the 
previous period, but we will endeavor to increase the ratio 
to 60%. Considering the potential risk of overseas 
production bases, we will reduce the risk by letting the other 
domestic or overseas production bases play a 
complementary role in each production item.

6

Overseas, the sales ratio in Asia has improved 
consecutively
Increased focus on the European market 

Obtained ISO 9001 integrated certification
ISO 9001 is the international standard for quality assurance that 
ISO (International Standards Organization) established.
Nichicon obtained such certification for the following 
organizations; headquarters, the domestic production 
department, and eighteen manufacturing business offices at 
home and abroad.



During this period, which started by being positioned at the 
beginning year for a new great leap forward, we 
accomplished increases in both sales and profits. Now our 
group can assume that most of the fundamentals necessary 
for future growth are completed. During the next period, we 
will continue to advance the strategies of the current year 
and accelerate development and sales promotion of new 
products in the four top priority fields, thus establishing a 
system to gain increases in both sales and profits.

For this purpose, we will use our management resources  
to strengthen the areas where our technology exceeds that of 
other companies. Therefore, a higher evaluation will be 
gained from the marketplace and from our customers, i.e., 
the resources will be used for vertical integration of the 
businesses. The targeted fields are the four top priority 
sectors of aluminum electrolytic capacitors, tantalum 
electrolytic capacitors, circuit products, and capacitors for 
electric apparatus and power utilities/others. In the next 
period, our management resources will be concentrated on 
these fields, and we aim to establish a system that enables 
double-digit growth every year for the respective sectors.

Our focus is on top priority markets—digital home 
appliances (where further growth is expected), 
inverter-equipped products, automotive-related devices, and 
information and communications devices. We are carefully 

analyzing opportunities in each of these markets. Among 
other things, we have a policy to focus on 
automotive-related devices during the next fiscal year, as 
electronics-related costs will assume a larger portion of 
automobile production costs. In addition, there is a 
possibility that the number of electronic parts for cars will 
increase owing to advances of hybrid cars, which we 
consider a major opportunity for our group. Our sales ratio 
for automotive-related devices to total sales has increased to 
around 14%, and we have the intention to raise this to about 
20% in the near future.

Our capital investment plan is to continuously concentrate 
resources in areas that have the greatest potential for 
growth. Not only will the production capacity of the hybrid 
IC for the automotive electronics be dramatically 
reinforced, but also the production facility for film 
capacitors will be significantly expanded with an investment 
of about 1.7 billion yen. We also have a plan to increase the 
production capacity of aluminum electrolytic capacitors at 
Nichicon Electronics (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. in China and will 
make aggressive investments in the four top priority fields 
with M&A in view.

In addition, we will provide maximum advantages for 
our customers by more actively developing new products to 
meet their needs. New product development will be 
accomplished through close relationships with each 
customer and, at the same time, seeking to differentiate our 

To our shareholders
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We will strive to improve our competitiveness by 
developing and supplying differentiated, high 
value added products 

Making the strong stronger will require a 
concentrated effort in the four top priority fields 
and vertical integration, which will allow us to 
establish a new path to increased sales and profits

Strategies for the period ending March 31, 2006

 



products from those of competitors. Joint development has 
already proceeded with customers from a wide range of 
industries, and has steadily yielded good results. We are 
now determined to leverage these joint development projects 
to develop differentiated products with higher reliability, 
safety, and functionality. In addition, we will work to 
improve our competitiveness. Our mission is to provide 
customers with high value-added products, based on our 
high level of technology, which at the same time is a source 
of profits for us.

Efforts for CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) are 
recognized as one of the most important business 
challenges. Our group established the CSR Office and 
constructed a system that generally has the activities for the 
entire Nichicon group, such as the operation of 
environmental conservation and management, compliance 
(adherence of law), contribution to society, risk 
management, corporate governance, etc. The fulfillment of 
CSR should be the result of doing what is naturally 
expected. In order to accomplish plans and achieve goals, 
we must first recognize and address the challenges of daily 
life. Accomplishing such plans and goals will lead to 
sustainable, sound development and improvement in 
corporate value.

Our group is focusing efforts into continuous 
improvement of environmental performance. From the 
perspective of securing product reliability, we are advancing 
product development in compliance with a variety of 

regulations, including the RoHS Directive in Europe (an 
instruction concerning the restrictions on specific harmful 
substances). We will also continuously focus on upgrading 
environment friendly product groups, such as, lead (Pb) free 
products and those that do not contain polyvinyl chloride 
(PVC), etc.

To our shareholders
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In order to fulfill our responsibility to society 
and our stakeholders

Corporate governance system

Group companies

CSR
office

President
& C.E.O.

Executive
office

operating officers

Business Divisions

Audit
office

Accounting
auditor

Board meeting Board of 
auditors

Shareholders’ meeting

Geo Cap, capacitor without lead 
and polyvinyl chloride



The Nichicon group accomplished structural reform over 
several business years and has taken steps toward a great 
leap forward in the current year. We will continue to meet 
the challenge of establishing a system in the next period 
where we can increase both sales and profits. We must 
develop  higher value-added products that exceed 
competitors’ products in quality. We will provide products 
and services that give our customers the utmost in 
satisfaction, devoting ourselves wholeheartedly with 
sincerity. The weapon of devoting ourselves wholeheartedly 
with sincerity can be used worldwide. 

Securing and training human resources who will assume 
the responsibility for technological development and 
business proposals are necessary in order to promote such 
activities. Our group will aggressively promote recruiting 
activities and strive to secure talented human resources in 
order to develop high value-added products and initiate 
joint research under a comprehensive tie-up with a 
university. Under the aim of advancing the corporate value 
of our group, we have determined to make improvements, 
to do our best, and to secure a course for continuous growth 
in all areas. We will make a dash for a great new leap!

In closing, I ask all of our shareholders for everlasting 
understanding and support for our group.

June 29, 2005
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Ippei Takeda
President & C.E.O.

Let’s secure our course for growth and dash 
toward another new leap, devoting ourselves 
wholeheartedly and with sincerity



Regional Sales Breakdown

Europe and others
Britain, France, Austria

37.9%Asia
China and ASEAN

The Americas
The U.S., Brazil, Mexico

10.6% 5.4
%

46.1%

Japan

Production capacity reinforcement in expected-growth 
fields is advancing mainly in the Asian region. 
The business atmosphere during this business year showed 
positive signs both at home and abroad during the first half 
of the year. However, at the start of the second half, 
business slowed because of a steep rise in the price of raw 
materials due to a sudden increase in oil prices and 
inventory adjustments for such IT products as cellular 
phones. However, domestic sales for the group amounted to 
48,000 million yen (an increase of 3.4% compared with the 
previous period), and foreign sales totaled 56,096 million 
yen (an increase of 3.0% compared with the previous 
period). These increases were the result of our efforts to 
develop new, differentiated products, as well as 
reinforcement of competitiveness and improvements in the 
level of customer satisfaction.

With respect to each region, sales in Europe and other 
regions showed an increase of 5,647 million yen (+6.5% 
from the previous period).  Our European sales for 
automotive electronics are doing well.  Meanwhile, sales in 
the Americas decreased to 11,036 million yen (a decrease of 
3.0% from the previous period). In the Asian region, sales 
amounted to 39,413 million yen (an increase of 4.4% 
compared with the previous period) as the production and 
sales networks continue to function well.

The overseas sales ratio, in relation to the slight increase 
in domestic sales, settled at 53.9% (0.1 percentage points 
down from the previous period). Our group, keeping pace 
with the trend to shift production bases to the China and 
Asian regions, will aggressively expand production and sales 
in China. We will press forward with the management 
system to enhance the overseas sales ratio to 60%.

The sales ratios in the European and American regions for 
the current period were 10.6% in the American region (0.7 
percentage points down from the previous period), and 
5.4% in the other regions, which includes the European 
region (0.1 percentage point increase from the previous 
period). The decrease in the ratio for the American region 
was the result of the economic slowdown in the United 
States caused by the sudden rise in oil prices after the second 
half of the year. On the other hand, in Europe, the demand 
for automotive-electronics  remained high. All the more 
reason that this area is being focused on for expected further 
demand.

In order to meet the need for miniaturizing electronic 
components and improving performance in terms of higher 
functionality, higher reliability, and adaptability for higher 
frequencies, our group has intensively invested managerial 
resources in four high priority sectors: aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors, tantalum electrolytic capacitors, 
circuit products, and capacitors for electric apparatus and 
power utilities/others. 

China, in particular, is a primary contributor to 
enlarging the Asian market. Our production facility for 
tantalum capacitors in Tianjin, China, purchased from 
Matsushita Electronic Components Co., Ltd., began 
operations as Nichicon Electronics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. in 
October 2004. With this accomplishment and the 
participation of Nichicon Electronics (Wuxi) Co., Ltd., the 
production base for aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 
circuit products, we established a production system for our 
three major sectors in China. Among other things, Nichicon 
Electronics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. will play an important role in 
promptly responding to the needs of our customers in 
China, as well as throughout the world, as the production 
base for tantalum capacitors.

Enhancing the production system for our three 
major products in the right locations in China

Our business in the European region doing 
well thanks to an increase in demand for 
automotive-electronics
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Global operations
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Net Sales by Location (Millions of yen)
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Nichicon products are broadly classified into three sectors: 
capacitors for electronics, circuit products, and  electric 
apparatus and power utilities/others.

The sector of capacitors for electronics produces 
aluminum electrolytic and tantalum electrolytic capacitors, 
which boast the world’s top class shares, as well as plastic 
film capacitors, positive thermistors, etc. This sector’s sales 
for the current year amounted to 78,346 million yen (5.3% 
up from the previous year), and its sales rate stood at 75.3% 
(1.5 percentage points up from the previous period).

The circuit products sector produces switching power 
supplies, which serve as the heart of electronic equipment, as 
well as hybrid IC/circuit modules on which such electronic 
components as IC chips, capacitors, and semiconductors are 
mounted. This sector’s sales for the current year amounted 

to 17,110 million yen (13.9% down from the previous year), 
and the sales rate stood at 16.4% (3.3 percentage points down 
from the previous period).

The electric apparatus and power utilities/others 
sector provides buildings and factories with the necessary 
industrial equipment to receive and transform electricity. It 
also produces capacitors for railroads and vehicles, as well 
as special equipment employing high-voltage/large current 
control technology. This sector’s sales for the current year 
amounted to 8,640 million yen (31.8% up from the previous 
year), and its sales rate stood at 8.3% (1.8 percentage points 
up from the previous period).

75.3%

8.3%

16.4%

Sales Breakdown by Operating Segments

Aluminum electrolytic capacitors
Tantalum electrolytic capacitors
Plastic film capacitors
Positive thermistors “Posi-R®”

Electric apparatus and
power utilities/others
Plastic film capacitors
Capacitor-related devices
Capacitor raw materials

Capacitors for electronics

Circuit products
Switching power supplies
Hybrid ICs 
Circuit modules

Review of operations by product segment

At Buildings and 
Factories Inside TVs



Aluminum electrolytic capacitors
Tantalum electrolytic capacitors
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Capacitors for electronics
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Sales of capacitors for the electronics sector amounted to 
78,346 million yen for the current year (5.3% up from the 
previous year).

The factor in both increases in sales was the growing 
domestic demand for telecommunications equipment, such 
as AV equipment and cellular phones, flat-screen TVs, 
DVD players and recorders, digital still cameras, and 
inverter-equipped products. In the overseas markets, sales in 
the Asian region increased steadily as a result of strong 
demand in the Chinese market. In the European region, 
sales of our products for the automotive market are doing 
well.

As digital devices have become more popular, the 
components mounted on those devices must be compact in 
size and demonstrate high functionality, low impedance, 
long life, and durability for increases in atmospheric 
temperatures due to high-density packaging. In the current 
year, Nichicon focused on developing aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors to meet these needs.  

Nichicon first developed long-life, chip-type aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors: the UL Series      warranted for 
105°C and 5000 hours, and the UW Series      offering 
low-impedance. These products are mainly used for 
flat-panel displays in LCD TVs and PDPs in digital 
household appliances.

For such common consumer products as printers, 
scanners, and copiers, we developed the AS Series abnormal 
voltage resistant, leadedterminal type aluminum electrolytic 
capacitor. This series offers advanced safety features.

The LG•GG Series      is a snap in terminal type, 
super-miniaturized, aluminum electrolytic capacitor. This 
series is designed to accommodate the needs for 
miniaturization of a smoothing capacitor offering a larger 
volume ratio compared to the other components mounted 
on power supply units.

The NX Series 700V/750V      and the EV Series 650V are 
leading edge products promoted by Nichicon for use in 
automotive electronics requiring a high voltage resistant 
aluminum electrolytic capacitor. Specific demand for the 
new series is in the area of inverter drives used in hybrid 
cars. These capacitors can handle the higher voltage 
necessary to smooth the power supplies used in the hybrid 
vehicles. Nichicon has supported this market since 2000. 
Above all, the NX series 750V provides a rated voltage of 
750 V, boasting the highest value in the industry.

In regards to tantalum electrolytic capacitors, Nichicon 
upgraded and expanded the lineup of the FramelessTM 
series. Demand for this series continues to be strong because 
of the need for miniaturization and higher performance in 
mobile electronics, such as cellular phones. In the resin 
molded type, we developed the S Case (2.0mm × 1.2mm × 
0.8mm; 6.3 V 47 μF) with a face-down terminal that 
achieved 75% miniaturization and the micro mini product X 
Case (1.6mm × 0.8mm × 0.5mm). Also in the conformal 
type, we developed the thin-shape, high-capacitance T Case  

 (height = 1.0 mm) and the Q Case (height = 0.8 mm).
A new tantalum capacitor for audio devices was also 

introduced called the Muse F95 Series     . At the assessment 
audition, the tone quality and the powerful, transparent 
bass sounds were highly rated.

Due to a downward trend in digital consumer electronics 
and telecommunications devices during the second half of 
the year a quick recovery of requirements for our products 
used in these fields cannot be expected. We hope for a slow 
recovery in the near future. On the other hand, since hybrid 
cars and fuel-cell vehicles are becoming increasingly 
popular, we expect increased demand for the high voltage, 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors and plastic film capacitors 
for automotive use.

Current year

Review of operations

In the future



Long-life, chip-type aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors: 
UL and UW Series

Snap-in terminal type, super-small size, 
aluminum electrolytic capacitor: LG and GG 
Series; Long-life product: GY Series

High-voltage screw terminal type aluminum 
electrolytic capacitor: NX Series 750V

Tantalum electrolytic capacitor for 
audio devices: Muse F95 Series
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Sales of circuit products for the current year amounted to 
17,110 million yen (13.9% down from the previous year).

A factor in the decreased sales for switching power 
supplies was that though we tried to promote the sales of 
telecommunications and office equipment, we were greatly 
affected by a larger trend where demand for amusement 
devices, such as family-use game consoles, quieted down.

The demand for our hybrid IC/circuit module, used in 
automotive products like sensors and control modules, 
showed steady performance; however, products for the 
information and telecommunications market, such as 
cellular phones, etc., experienced an inventory adjustment 
phase after the second half of the year. Consequently, this 
affected us significantly and caused a drop in total income.

Current year

The aluminum electrolytic capacitor is our core product 
and represents more than the half of our total sales. The 
product’s strength lies in our ability to consistently develop 
innovations ranging from the main raw material, aluminum 
electrode foil, to the finished product. To improve this 
advantage, Nichicon will expand the Ohmachi Factory, 
which is the manufacturing base for the electrode foil, and 
increase production capacity. Also, in order to reinforce our 
development capacity for new, high value-added products, 
we plan to carry out aggressive, continuous capital 
investments. With regard to automotive-related products, 
Nichicon will upgrade the variations on products to handle 
the severe operating conditions of high temperature and 
strong vibrations while driving. This will, of course, include 
securing voltage resistant performance.

We have experienced continuous growth in our line of 
tantalum electrolytic capacitors since the previous period as 
a result of continuously strong demands for technically 
advanced products and resin-coated conformal chip type 
tantalums in applications such as cellular  phones and 
digital cameras. Going forward, Nichicon will concentrate 
on the development of a new product type to reinforce our 
competitive power.

Switching power supplies
Hybrid ICs
Circuit modules

Circuit products
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During the current period, sales of capacitors for the electric 
apparatus power utilities/others sector amounted to 8,640 
million yen (31.8% up from the previous year). 

In a product-by-product review, sales of capacitors for 
electric apparatus power utilities/others  amounted to 6,577 
million yen (41.6% up from the previous year). Factors for 
the increase in revenue were the participation by a new 
company in our group, an increase in new orders based on 
our needs-boosting efforts, and a recovery in private sector 
business investment since the second half of the previous 
period. One additional factor was our supplying the Japan 
Atomic Energy Research Institute with capacitors for 
cyclotron resonance. The higher harmonic wave, low-loss 

series reactor, marketed in the previous period, contributes 
to a decrease in the environmental load and is doing well. 
Additionally, as proof of our excellent technology, we 
cooperated with a research organization to successfully 
develop the world’s fastest  high-capacitance inverter 
system. We then supplied it to the organization.

Sales of  capacitor-related equipment  amounted to 2,063 
million yen (8.0% up from the previous year).

Regarding plastic film capacitors, in order to handle the 
expected growth in the automotive industry, we are 
planning capital investments of 1.7 billion yen during the 
next period.

Sales of Capacitors for Electric Apparatus
and Power Utilities/Others (Millions of Yen)

9,676

0 10,0008,0006,0004,0002,000
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Future measures concerning switching power supplies will 
include strengthening our environmental technology 
development. Nichicon will establish five product 
categories: office automation devices, liquid crystal 
projectors, DVD players and recorders, large-scale 
flat-panel televisions, and amusement equipment, which will 
become the main targets of promotional sales activities. We 
will strive to handle compactness with  high effectiveness, 
higher harmonic waves, and energy conservation, as well as 

improve the power-factor in the mid to high power supply.
We will continuously promote sales of the hybrid 

IC/circuit module to take advantage of the expanded use in 
the automotive industry. Furthermore, Nichicon will 
enhance circuit development technology specializing in 
inverter control and peripheral circuits. In addition, we will 
advance the development of a variety of inverter-equipped 
products.

In the future

Current period

In the future

Plastic film capacitors
Capacitor-related devices
Capacitor raw materials

Capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities/others 

Review of operations



PVC-free product that considers 
environmental problems, lead-free
 product

Electrically 
conductive

Adhesive

Anode 
elemental device

Weld

Anode tantalum lead

Epoxy resin

Cathode frame (Sn coat)
Anode frame 
(Sn coat)

Structural drawing 
of mold product

Nichicon has not used lead in this
product since 1986. Sn coated 

terminal 
electrode 
(Lead-free)

Lead-free 
Sn metallikon•

Zn system alloy Fe Fe Sn coat

Cu coat

Resin-molded chip type, tantalum 
solid electrolytic capacitor

Snap-in terminal type, 
aluminum electrolytic capacitor

Screw terminal type, aluminum 
electrolytic capacitor

Development of lead-free metallikon
for plastic film capacitors

Sleeve:
Polyolefin 
(PVC-free)

Sleeve: 
PET or 
polyolefin 
(PVC-free)

Terminal: Sn coat 
(Lead-free)

Bottom plate:
Polyester 
(PVC-free)

The RoHS directive (a directive on the restriction of the use 
of certain hazardous substances) provides for the banning 
of the use of materials contained in electrical/electronic 
equipment sold in the EU and ask manufacturers to stop the 
use of heavy metals (lead, cadmium, mercury, and 
hexavalent chromium) and specific bromine flame 
retardants (PBB and PBDE), the causes of dioxin 
generation, completely by July 1, 2006.

Our company has completed the development of 
lead-free products, which are now our standard products 
and available for sale. We propose to our users, who have 
purchased products containing lead, to change to the 
lead-free products.

Also, with regard to PVCs for which lead, etc., are used 
as a stabilizing agent, we have set PVC-free products, such 
as PET (polyethylene terephthalate), etc., as our standard 
products.  

Since the enactment of Nichicon Group’s Environmental 
Charter in December 1997, our group has conducted 
environmental conservation activities to realize coexistence 
with the earth and a human/environment friendly society, 
which are the basic ideas of the charter. At present, our 
businesses in the sectors of technology and product 
development and production, respectively, are conducted 
with environmental conservation activities set as an 
important challenge for us.

Compliance to the RoHS directive

Approach to environmental conservation activities
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To contribute to the construction of a resource recycling 
society, our group has promoted the reduction and recycling 
of waste since business year 2002 and continued zero emissions 
(in our group, a recycling rate is defined as 98%).

For each business base, the spirit of the 3Rs (Reuse, 
Reduce, and Recycle) is communicated to everyone, and good 
results have been produced with a new idea suggested every 
year.

Reduction and recycling of waste

Total amount of recycling and recycling rate of waste

Recycling rate (%)

53,134 91.5
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98.0
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Total amount of recycling ( t )
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Rooftop facility 
(Storage Type Solar Power System)

Next-generation ecological building taking advantage of advanced technology

Focusing on product development in top
priority markets 
An increasing number of our products  
are being adopted in the automotive field

Spirit of Innovation, Environment, and the  
Wisdom of an Old Capital
A new corporate headquarters building was
completed. We anticipate an acceleration of
management decisions
Our new corporate headquarters building was completed in 
November 2004 on land adjoining our former headquarters 
building (Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto) 
and came into service in December of the same year. At the 
start of construction of the new corporate headquarters 
building, our goal was to create a new landmark where 
tradition and high technology are fused with our concepts: 
“Spirit of Innovation, Environment, and Wisdom of an 
Old Capital.”

The new building has a fan-like exterior, hard grating 
fixtures on the first floor, full-height glazing with a 
double-skin structure, and expresses the image of Kyoto. 
The lighting effect at night, which looms over the entire 
building, gives the impression of a room lantern. 
Conversely, the building houses a state-of-the-art 
information network and fully equipped, leading edge 
facilities that make good use of information technology. 
The energy saving, environment-friendly design has a 

For the automotive electronics market, which constitutes 
our top priority, we developed new products in both sectors 
of aluminum electrolytic capacitors and plastic film 
capacitors and aggressively brought these products to 
market. By strengthening our development of high voltage 
resistant type products for hybrid cars and fuel cell vehicles, 
which requires higher operating voltage for the driving 
inverter, we succeeded in expanding our share at the 
automotive related product market as a whole.

In the current year, as a result of our development 
efforts, we developed new products, including the 750 V 
high voltage resistant, screw terminal-type, aluminum 
electrolytic capacitor, a pioneering product in the industry, 
and a chip-type aluminum electrolytic capacitor with 
enhanced high temperature and vibration resistant 
performance. The technology in these products has been 
highly rated by the market.
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Ohmachi Factory

Strengthened production capacity for  
aluminum electrode foil, where an increase in 
demand is expected

Second consecutive quality award from 
Intel Corporation, USA

The Nichicon group completed the structural reforms of 
unification and reorganization of production bases by the end 
of the previous period in preparation for significant future 
development. As a result, we were able to aggressively execute 
hard-hitting measures, including capital investment, during the 
current period, with aluminum electrolytic capacitors, 
tantalum electrolytic capacitors, circuit products, and electric 
apparatus power utilities/others as the four core sectors.

Our goal is to maintain the concept “To be a valuable 
supplier for our customers,” Consequently, our activities 
resulted in being honored with the SCQI (Supplier 
Continuous Quality Improvement) award for 2004 by Intel 
Corporation (HQ: Santa Clara, California, USA). The  
award was established by Intel Corporation for the purpose 
of improving the quality of materials and services provided 
by suppliers and is granted to companies that have earned 
the highest evaluation on a variety of examined items. We 
were honored for our excellent performance in supplying 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors. This is the second 
consecutive year that we received an award, last year we 
received the PQS (Preferred Quality Supplier) award, which 
is a testament to our efforts in quality control and stable 
supply.

storage-type, photovoltaic system developed from our own 
technology installed on the roof, employs an ice thermal 
storage system that uses electric power at night, and 
high-efficiency lighting and a daylight-cooperative light 
control system.

As a global electronic parts manufacturer, the 
concentration of our core functions at our headquarters and 
the unification of information are essential. From that 
standpoint, the new headquarters will play a major role as 
the foundation for prompt management decisions and the 
ability to adjust to a fast-moving age.

In addition, we aggressively invested in electrode foils for 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors, especially for increased 
production of mid to high voltage use foils, for which we 
anticipate high demand in automobiles and inverter- 
equipped products.

Awarded by Intel two years in a row
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Research and development activities

The Nichicon Group s̓ core business is the manufacturing of 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors, tantalum electrolytic capacitors, 
and plastic film capacitors. We also develop and distribute 
switching power supplies, hybrid ICs, and capacitor-related 
equipment. Our aim is the development of original and ecologically 
friendly products and production of merchandise that can attain 
customer satisfaction toward a diversified, sophisticated society 
under the management concept, “How to serve and contribute to the 
creation of a brighter future.”

Research and development expenses for the Group in the current 
consolidated business year stood at 2,023 million yen.

The status of research and development by business segment is 
as follows.

(1) Capacitors for Electronics
In the aluminum electrolytic capacitor segment, Nichicon focuses 
on the product fields of automotive-related devices, 
inverter-equipped products, digital home appliances, and 
information and communication devices. In the fields of 
automotive-related devices, the company developed screw 
terminal-type aluminum electrolytic capacitors in response to the 
demand for high voltage endurance with the following 
guaranteed temperature and rating voltage: 85°C and 700 V and 
750 V, and 105°C and 650 V for use in inverter circuits that drive 
the power motors in hybrid vehicles and fuel-cell vehicles, which 
are expected to grow more popular.

We also commercialized the UE Series, chip-type aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors with the degrees guaranteed up to 125°C 
that upgraded the vibration resistance to correspond to harsh use 
conditions such as engine heat and strong vibrations when 
driving.

In the fields of inverter-equipped products, we 
commercialized the QR Series, screw terminal-type aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors corresponding to high-speed charge and 
discharge for the use of the capacitors that repeat high-speed 
charge and discharge in a short period of time, especially for AC 
servomotors widely used for industrial equipment.

In the fields of digital home appliances, and information and 
communication devices, we developed the UL Series, long life 
chip-type aluminum electrolytic capacitors, and the UW Series, 
long life, low impedance aluminum electrolytic capacitors as 
secondary smoothing circuits for information and 
communication devices, home information devices, and 
audio-visual equipment. We developed the LG Series (products 
with 85°C guaranteed) and the GG Series (products with 105°C 
guaranteed), snap-in terminal type aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors aimed at miniaturized size for primary circuits.

The company also developed the AS Series, leaded type 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors, offering advanced safety 
features, they are miniaturized but can withstand high ripple 
currents  for circuits that are required to have abnormal voltage 
resistance.
In the tantalum electrolytic capacitor segment, Nichicon 
upgraded and expanded the rating for the FramelessTM Series that 
provided the maximum capacitance per volume. We are now 
becoming active in development for mobile electronics. The 
frameless resin coated conformal capacitor is, as its name 
implies, a capacitor with a unique structure coated with resin (not 
resin mold) and characterized by high volumetric efficiency. The 

lineup of this product includes the F75 Series, large volumetric 
and low ESR capacitors, and the F72 Series, large volumetric, 
low ESR and low-profile capacitors, as well as the F95 Series. 
This product was developed in a bid to achieve compatibility 
between high volumetric efficiency and high density mounting 
capability. We developed a capacitor with 6.3 V/47 µF  in the 
2012-size (2.0 mm long x 1.2 mm wide) with 0.8 mm height (S 
case), realizing miniaturization by 75% compared with 
conventional resin mold products, while the micro mini product 
X case in the 1608-size (1.6 mm long x 0.8 mm wide) is 0.5 mm 
high. 
In the field of plastic film capacitors, Nichicon developed 
non-armored chip-type film capacitors, the ML Series. The 
capacitors are most suitable for application in resonant circuits of 
backlights for LCD (liquid crystal displays) and PDP (plasma 
display panels) where high heat resistance (working temperature 
+85 to 125C°), high frequency resistance (50 Hz to 150 kHz), 
high current resistance, and high reliability are required. The 
company is promoting sales in the field of digital appliances 
where future market expansion is expected.

(2) Circuit Products
In the switching power supplies, Nichicon employed control circuits 
to regulate output voltage within a fixed range, low-power supply 
circuits to control ICs, and a C-MOS control IC that reduced the 
electric power drive for control ICs, as well as our own detector 
circuit for standby power requirements that can determine 
individual standby status. Consequently, the company succeeded in 
reducing the standby power consumption of the switching power 
supply to 1/5 compared to that of conventional products. We are 
now marketing the product for game consoles, PC peripherals, and 
digital household appliances. We also developed a photovoltaic 
system with a storage function used the world s̓ largest 8 MJ electric 
double layer capacitor bank with key words of clean energy and 
energy saving. In the electric double layer capacitor in the storage 
part, we use EVerCAP, which we developed.

(3) Environmentally Friendly Products
The move toward control of hazardous substances has started on a 
global scale; for instance, the RoHS Directive (the use of hazardous 
substances is banned with some exceptions) will be enforced from 
July 2006 onward. Nichicon was the first to deal with 
environmental problems and is now launching the ecologically 
friendly Geo Cap Series. All these products correspond to the RoHS 
Directive, and we are switching from conventional products to 
products in the “Geo Cap” Series.

In adapting to the environment during the production of 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors, we have stopped using PVC 
(polyvinyl chloride), which emits dioxin when incinerated. 
Furthermore, our products do not include lead. Resin molded chip 
tantalum electrolytic capacitors have not included lead since their 
development. As for Conformal-coated tantalum electrolytic 
capacitors, the company switched to lead-free products in 2001. In 
addition, we started making the switch to resin coating materials 
that do not contain bromine series flame retardants in 2004. For 
plastic film capacitors, we have completed the switch to lead-free 
terminals. In 2005 we are completing the switch to totally lead-free 
products.
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Risk information

The following risks may affect the Group s̓ future operating results, 
stock prices, and financial standing.

And matters reported regarding the future were determined by 
our group as of the end of this consolidated business year.

(1) Economic Situation
The Group manufactures and sells capacitors for electronics and 
other products worldwide. Consequently, demand for the Group s̓ 
products is affected by the economic situation of the countries or 
regions in which products are sold.

(2) Risk of Currency Exchange Fluctuations
In the Group s̓ business, achievements, and financial standing, items 
denominated in the local currency outside Japan are converted into 
yen in order to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The 
value of these items after the conversion to yen may be affected by 
fluctuations in the exchange rate. Although the Group enters into an 
exchange contract to reduce and hedge exchange risks, it is not 
guaranteed that effects on the Group s̓ achievements and financial 
standing can be completely eliminated.

(3) Risk of Price Competition
The Group expands domestic and foreign production bases, 
improves the sales structure, and promotes the speedy development 
of new products aiming to improve the core business, including 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors, tantalum electrolytic capacitors, 
circuit products and capacitors for electric apparatus and power 
utilities/others, and to develop a global structure. Under the 
circumstances, when the Group s̓ products and services face price 
competition from competitors, the Group s̓ business, achievements, 
and economic standing may be adversely affected.

(4) Development Risk of New Products
The Group thinks that it is possible to develop and provide 
attractive new products to anticipate customer needs into the future. 
When the Group lacks the following abilities, however, the Group s̓ 
business, achievements, and economic standing may be adversely 
affected.

Ability to deal with customer needs for greater diversity and 
sophistication
Ability to develop and produce appropriate new products at a 
reasonable price
Ability to make customers use the Group s̓ new products.
Ability to use and develop new products, services, and 
technologies
Ability to improve existing products, services, and technologies
Ability to adequately predict changes in the industry and market

(5) Potential Risk of Overseas Presence
Changes in the taxation system or tax rate; other economic, social, 
and political fluctuations; and shifts in exchange policy and 
modification of regulations, etc., about exports or imports in 
countries and regions where the Group develops businesses may 
have harmful effects on the Group s̓ business, achievements, and 
economic standing.

The Group set up manufacturing bases for aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors, etc., in Wuxi and for tantalum electrolytic capacitors in 
Tianjin, China, respectively. When unforeseen circumstances occur 
in the political climate, legal environment, and economic situation, 

it is likely that problems are found in business performance and the 
Group s̓ business, achievements, and economic standing are 
adversely affected.

(6) Escalation of purchase price of raw materials
Escalation of the purchase price for raw materials, which is 
significantly affected by international market conditions among raw 
materials used for the main products of the Group, may adversely 
affect the Group s̓ financial condition and result of operations.

(7) Product Liability
Although the Group places strict controls on product quality and 
manufactures products according to global quality control 
standards, products and services provided by the Group may be 
defective. And although the Group takes out product-liability 
insurance, it is not guaranteed that claimable amounts can be fully 
recompensed.

The loss resulting from any defect may have a negative effect on 
the Group s̓ business, achievements, and financial standing through 
a large amount of costs and derogation of assessment of the Group.

(8) Change and Reinforcement of Legal Restrictions
Important changes in laws and regulations in countries and regions 
where the Group develops business may have a negative effect on 
the Group s̓ business, achievements, and economic standing.

In addition, the business of the Group is covered by various 
environmental laws and faces the risk of environmental 
responsibility regarding past, current, and future production 
activities. When regulations relating to the environment tighten and 
obligations to remove hazardous substances, etc., are added in the 
future, costs for meeting these changes may have a negative effect 
on the Group s̓ business, achievements, and economic standing.

(9) Effect of Disasters, etc.
Although the Group regularly inspects and checks all equipment to 
prevent disasters, it is not guaranteed that negative impacts from 
disasters, etc., can be completely prevented or alleviated. Those 
may have a negative effect on the Group s̓ business, achievements, 
and economic standing.

(10) Others
The risk factors listed above do not cover all risks regarding the 
development of business and others. Also, other risks might develop 
and have a negative effect on the Group s̓ business, achievements, 
and economic standing.



20

Financial review

Thanks to the expanded sales of our differentiated/high 
value-added products, our sales for the current year amounted to 
104,096 million yen (3.2% up from the previous year). Of total 
sales, the overseas sales occupied 53.9% (56,096 million yen, 
3.0% up from the previous year), and in spite of their decrease 
by 0.1 points in comparison with the ones of the previous year, 
the overseas sales result surpassed the domestic one (48,000 
million yen in the current year) three years in a row. There were 
various factors for this good result, but the main reason was that 
the sales in the Asia region, especially sales in China, showed 
favorable progress of 39,413 million yen (4.4% up from the 
previous year's 37,761 million yen).

With regard to sales according to sector, sales in the 
capacitors for electronics sector amounted to 78,346 million yen 
(5.3% up from the previous year) because  digital devices such 
as cell phones, DVDʼs, and digital cameras as well as the 
inverter-equipped products showed steady growth.

As for sales of the circuit products sector, they ended up as 
17,110 million yen (13.9% down from the previous year). This 
was in spite of the steady growth of the hybrid IC (due to the 
favorable sales of its automobile related components) but 
because not only were the sales of telecommunication related 
components affected by cell phone inventory adjustments but 
also the sales of the switching power supplies waned due to an 
over saturation of supply in the amusement devices market.

As for the sales of capacitors in the electric apparatus 
power utilities/others sector, they amounted to 6,577 million 
yen (41.6% up from the previous year). The factors for this 
increase were the participation of a new company into our 
group, an increase in new orders (from our needs-boosting 
efforts), and the recovery in business investments from the 
private sector.

Cost of sales and selling, general and 
administrative expenses
The cost of sales amounted to 86,277 million yen (2.0% up from 
the previous year). This owed mainly to the increase in sales. In 
the current year, as a result of our continuous cost reduction 
efforts from the previous year, such as reduction in fixed costs, 
cost reduction by improved productivity, etc., the cost rate of the 
sales settled at 82.9% (improved by 0.9 points from the previous 
year). Administrative expenses amounted to 11,505 million yen 
(1.5% down from the previous year). This was mainly because 
not only did the cost for severance indemnities decrease to 237 
million yen (decreased by 318 million yen from the previous 
year), but also depreciation cost, commission charges, and other 
costs decreased, respectively. Consequently, the administrative 
expenses rate of sales settled at 11.0% (improved by 0.6 points 
from the previous year).

Operating income and income before income 
taxes and minority interest
As a result of the above performance, the current yearʼs 
operating income amounted to 6,314 million yen (36.7% up 

from the previous year), and the operating income rate of sales 
stood at 6.1% (1.5 points up from the previous year). When we 
review the results according to the areas, the domestic operating 
income amounted to 5,591 million yen, and our business in Asia 
and the US areas, which recorded a loss in the previous year, 
turned an operating profit at each area thanks to sales increases, 
reduction in sales costs, etc.

With regard to other income items, in spite of the strong yen 
that proceeded from the beginning of the year, our efforts to 
hedge the exchange risk worked well, and our exchange loss 
stopped at 138 million yen (decreased by 615 million yen from 
the previous year). As a result, the current year's ordinary 
income amounted to 6,691 million yen (53.0% up from the 
previous year). With regard to extraordinary income and loss, in 
the previous year we recorded an extraordinary loss of 4,405 
million yen in total. This was because while we turned a profit 
of 5,389 million yen by returning a part of the employees  ̓
pension fund to the government authorities, which we had 
collected on behalf of them, we had to spend not only 2,350 
million yen for the costs, which was related to a business 
restructuring program initiated by our structural reform, such as 
unification/reorganization of production bases and business 
establishment, withdrawal from unprofitable business, etc., but 
also 1,200 million yen for the costs of environmental measures, 
which we took to dispose of materials used to produce 
capacitors in the past, as well as products made by those 
materials, and other expenses. In the current year, however, 
since no critical factors affected us, extraordinary income 
decreased to 50 million yen (99.1% down from the previous 
year) and extraordinary loss decreased to 387 million yen 
(91.2% down from the previous year). As a result, compared to 
the previous year, the current yearʼs income before income taxes 
and minority interest increased by 15.9% to 6,354 million yen.

Income taxes
With regard to income taxes our taxable income decreased in the 
previous year because returning a part of the employees  ̓pension 
fund to the government authorities (which we had collected on 
behalf of them) caused a decrease in the accrued severance 
indemnities for employees, but in the current year, our taxable 
income increased to 1,991 million yen (133.6% up from the 
previous year) because the current yearʼs income before income 
taxes and minority interest rose thanks to increased sales, cost 
reduction, and so on. The amount to be adjusted for income 
taxes according to the tax effect accounting system was 236 
million yen. Meanwhile, the effective tax rate in the current year 
decreased to 35.1% from the 60.3% of the previous year. This 
decrease was caused mainly by a decrease in the tax loss of 
subsidiaries.

Minority interest
As for minority interest, which is deductible from the current 
yearʼs income before income taxes and minority interest we 
reported a minority interest loss of 11 million yen in the 
previous year, but we made a profit of 56 million yen in the 

Sales



21

current year. This was because the consolidated subsidiaries, 
whose shares are held by the minority stockholders, produced a 
profit in the current year.

Net income
The net income in the current year amounted to 4,071 million 
yen (85.8% up from the previous year). This was mainly 
because an increase in sales pushed up the current yearʼs income 
before income taxes and minority interest. The net income rate 
for sales in the current year increased to 3.9% (1.7 points up 
from the previous year). Also, the current year's net income per 
share settled at 51.46 yen.

On the fluidity of funds
The outstanding balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end 
of the current year amounted to 14,070 million yen, which is a 
decrease of 138 million yen from 14,208 million yen at the end 
of the previous year. The factors causing these changes are as 
follows. Cash flow for operating activities amounted to 12,576 
million yen, which is an increase of 1,002 million yen in 
comparison with the previous year. This increase was mainly 
caused by the increase in the current yearʼs income before 
income taxes and minority interest, as well as by the significant 
decrease in the accrued severance indemnities for employees 
owing to the return of a part of the employees  ̓pension fund to 
the government authorities, which we had collected on behalf of 
them. Expenditures in cash flow for investing activities 
amounted to 12,098 million yen, which is an increase of 3,993 
million yen in comparison with the previous year. The main 
reason for this increase was that the more significant increase of 
capital investment in the current year than the previous year 
caused an expenditure of 8,273 million yen for acquiring 
tangible fixed assets. In the current year, free cash flow (based 
on the formula: Excess income in cash flow in operating 
activities minus excess expenditure in cash flow in investing 
activities) resulted in a surplus of 478 million yen. Cash flow for 
financing activities amounted to 1,074 million yen, with the 
expenditure decreased by 1,665 million yen in comparison with 
the previous year.

Financial position
Our groupʼs total assets at the end of the current year amounted 
to 155,879 million yen (7.1% up from the previous year). 
Current assets amounted to 71,241 million yen (2.5% down 
from the previous year). This was mainly because the worth of 
the assets decreased by 3,702 million yen owing to the arrival of 
the maturity period of the securities, etc. Tangible fixed assets 
(after deducting the accumulated depreciation cost) amounted to 
42,645 million yen (7.4% up from the previous year). This was 
mainly because capital investment was significantly increased 
than in the previous year. Meanwhile, the total amount of the 
capital investments during the current year reached 12,370 
million yen. The amount can be broadly categorized as follows: 
6,348 million yen, mainly for the reinforcement and expansion 
of the electrode foil production facility, a main component of 

aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 3,921 million yen for 
tantalum electrolytic capacitor related investments, including 
capital investment to acquire the tantalum electrolytic capacitor 
division of Matsushita Electronic Components Co., Ltd., and so 
on. Our own resources covered the entire funding necessary to 
make these investments. And the depreciation cost amounted to 
8,808 million yen (9.6% down from the previous year).

Intangible fixed assets amounted to 506 million yen (24.7% 
down from the previous year). The main component of the 
intangible fixed assets is software. Investments and other assets 
amounted to 41,487 million yen (29.6% up from the previous 
year). This is mainly because the investments in securities 
increased to 35,827 million yen, an increase of 7,577 million 
yen from the end of the previous year, owing to the purchase of 
industrial bonds, bank bonds, etc. 

On the other hand, with regard to liabilities,  curent liabilities 
amounted to 27,764 million yen (24.1% up from the previous 
year). This was mainly because the bills payable for facilities in 
terms of capital investment increased by 1,490 million yen to 
2,072 million yen. Long-term liabilities amounted to 5,991 
million yen (15.9% up from the previous year). This was mainly 
because the deferred tax liabilities amounted to 869 million yen, 
an increase of 863 million yen from the end of the previous year. 
Most of the deferred tax liabilities correspond to such a tax that 
is imposed on us according to the appraisal of any profits from 
securities. With regard to shareholders  ̓equity our common stock 
and additional paid-in capital  remained unchanged from the 
previous year, at 14,287 million yen and 17,065 million yen, 
respectively. Mainly owing to an increase in net income in the 
current year, the outstanding balance of our retained earnings at 
the end of the current year amounted to 92,898 million yen 
(3.9% up from the previous year). The outstanding balance of 
unrealized holdings on securities, which corresponds to the 
difference (after deducting the tax effect) between the current 
price and book value of financial products such as listed stocks 
(calculated by the market-value accounting system), amounted 
to 3,207 million yen (16.0% up from the previous year). Also, in 
the adjustments on foreign currency statement translation 
according to the exchange conversion rate, which is brought by 
the conversion of financial statements from overseas 
subsidiaries etc., we saw a minus 1,830 million yen at the end of 
the current year in comparison with a minus 2,084 million yen at 
the end of the previous year. The outstanding balance of treasury 
stock at the end of the current year increased by 5 million yen to 
3,603 million yen.

As a result of the above performance, our shareholders  ̓
equity amounted to 122,024 million yen (3.5% up from the 
previous year), and the shareholderʼs quity ratio stood at 78.3% 
(2.7 points down from the previous year). The shareholders  ̓
equity per share amounted to 1,555.42 yen (3.5% up from the 
previous year), and the return on equity stood at 3.4% (1.5 
points up from the previous year).



March 31,

Millions of Yen

March 31,

Thousands of  U.S. Dollars
(Note 3)

2005

(  )

(  )

(  )

2004 2005
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents........................................

Time deposits ............................................................

Trade receivable:

Notes......................................................................

Accounts ................................................................

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ..................

Short-term investments (Note 4) ...............................

Inventories (Note 5)....................................................

Deferred tax assets (Note 14) ....................................

Other current assets ..................................................

Total current assets .............................................

Property, plant and equipment:

Land...........................................................................

Buildings and structures ............................................

Machinery and equipment .........................................

Construction in progress ...........................................

Less: accumulated depreciation................................

Net property, plant and equipment.....................

Investments and other assets:

Investments in securities (Note 4)..............................

Investments in and advances to unconsolidated

subsidiaries and affiliates .......................................

Deferred tax assets (Note 14) ....................................

Other ..........................................................................

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts......................

Total investments and other assets .......................

Total assets ..............................................................

ASSETS

¥

¥

14,070

—

5,906

22,687

145

28,448

7,862

17,267

1,618

1,976

71,241

3,962

28,685

129,358

808

162,813

120,168

42,645

35,827

2,936

351

3,172

293

41,993

155,879

(  )

(  )

(  )

¥

¥

14,208

12

5,847

21,881

139

27,589

11,564

16,027

1,092

2,610

73,102

4,137

28,218

121,709

205

154,269

114,553

39,716

28,250

2,792

561

1,369

279

32,693

145,511

(  )

(  )

(  )

$

$

131,544

—

55,218

212,105

1,353

265,970

73,505

161,433

15,129

18,476

666,057

37,049

268,183

1,209,404

7,559

1,522,195

1,123,488

398,707

334,957

27,446

3,285

29,656

2,744

392,600

1,457,364

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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March 31,

Millions of Yen

March 31,

Thousands of  U.S. Dollars
(Note 3)

2005

(  )

(  )

2004 2005
Current liabilities:

Trade payable:

Notes......................................................................

Accounts ................................................................

Notes for construction ...............................................

Accrued income taxes (Note 14) ...............................

Accrued expenses .....................................................

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 14).................................

Other current liabilities...............................................

Total current liabilities..........................................

Long-term liabilities:

Accrued severance indemnities (Note 8) ...................

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 14).................................

Other long-term liabilities...........................................

Total long-term liabilities .....................................

Minority interest...........................................................

Shareholders’ equity (Note 10):

Common stock,

Authorized:

−137,000,000 shares at March 31, 2005 and 2004

Issued:

−81,144,372 shares at March 31, 2005 and 2004

Additional paid-in capital ...........................................

Retained earnings......................................................

Unrealized holding gains on securities (Note 11) ......

Adjustments on foreign currency statement

translation...............................................................

Less: treasury stock

−2,716,982 shares at March 31, 2005 ...................

−2,712,784 shares at March 31, 2004 ...................

Total shareholders’ equity .......................................

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ...............

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’EQUITY

¥

¥

4,243

10,916

15,159

2,072

1,798

4,893

32

3,810

27,764

4,622

869

500

5,991

100

14,287

17,065

92,898

3,207

1,830

3,603

—

122,024

155,879

(  )

(  )

¥

¥

3,099

12,568

15,667

582

554

4,449

33

1,090

22,375

4,708

6

457

5,171

82

14,287

17,065

89,450

2,763

2,084

—

3,598

117,883

 145,511

(  )

(  )

$

$

39,668

102,058

141,726

19,371

16,807

45,751

305

35,620

259,580

43,216

8,126

4,672

56,014

941

133,570

159,546

868,531

29,982

17,110

33,690

—

1,140,829

1,457,364
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Net sales (Note 17) ......................................................

Operating costs and expenses (Note 17):

Cost of sales(Note 13) ...............................................

Selling, general and administrative expenses 

(Notes 12,13) ..........................................................

Total operating costs and expenses ..................

Operating income (Note 17) ................................

Other income (expenses):

Interest and dividend income on investments...........

Interest expenses.......................................................

Foreign exchange loss, net........................................

Equity in net gains of affiliated company...................

Gain (loss) on valuation of short-term investments 

and investments in securities, net..........................

Net loss on sales or disposal of property, plant and 

equipment ..............................................................

Gain on return of substitutional portion of 

the employees pension fund (Note 8) ....................

Expenses on operation restructuring (Note 16) .........

Expenses on environmental protection measures 

(Note 16).................................................................

Other, net ...................................................................

Total other income (expenses), net ....................

Income before income taxes and minority interest...

Income taxes (Note 14):

Current .......................................................................

Deferred .....................................................................

Total income taxes ...............................................

Minority interest...........................................................

Net income............................................................

For the year ended March 31,

Millions of Yen

For the year ended March 31,

 Thousands of U.S. Dollars
(Note3)

2005

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

2004 2005
¥

¥

104,096

86,277

11,505

97,782

6,314

330

5

 138

35

2

169

—

—

—

15

40

6,354

1,991

236

2,227

56

4,071

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

¥

¥

100,849

84,553

11,678

96,231

4,618

277

12

     753

 45

68

 433

5,389

2,350

1,200

 165

866

5,484

852

 2,452

3,304

11

2,191

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

$

$

973,231

806,629

107,563

914,192

59,039

3,082

51

1,289

329

18

1,579

—

—

—

143

367

59,406

18,620

2,203

20,823

520

38,063

Amount per share:

Net income (Note 18):

Basic ......................................................................

Diluted ....................................................................

Cash dividends ..........................................................

Weighted average number of shares (thousands) 

Basic ......................................................................

Diluted ....................................................................

Yen
U.S. Dollars

(Note 3)

¥ 51.46

—

15.00

78,430

—

¥ 27.28

—

13.00

79,322

—

$ 0.48

—

0.14

   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

NICHICON CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Millions of Yen

Number of
shares of

common stock
Common

stock
Additional

paid-in capital
Retained
earnings

 Unrealized
holding gains
on securities

Adjustments on
foreign currency

statement translation
Treasury

stock

Balance at March 31, 2003 ..

Net income .........................

Cash dividends paid ...........

Bonuses to directors...........

Increase due to valuation 

of securities.....................

Adjustments on foreign currency 

statement translation ......

Increase in treasury stock...

Balance at March 31, 2004 ..

Net income .........................

 Adjustment due to increase in 

consolidated subsidiaries..

Cash dividends paid ...........

Bonuses to directors...........

Increase due to valuation 

of securities.....................

Adjustments on foreign currency 

statement translation ......

Increase in treasury stock...

Balance at March 31, 2005 ..

¥

¥

¥

14,287

—

—

—

—

—

—

14,287

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

14,287

81,144,372

—

—

—

—

—

—

81,144,372

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

81,144,372

¥

¥

¥

17,065

—

—

—

—

—

—

17,065

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

17,065

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

¥

¥

¥

88,322

2,191

1,035

28

—

—

—

89,450

4,071

424

1,018

29

—

—

—

92,898

¥

¥

¥

897

—

—

—

1,866

—

—

2,763

—

—

—

—

444

—

—

3,207

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

¥

¥

¥

138

—

—

—

—

1,946

—

2,084

—

—

—

—

—

   

254

—

1,830

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

¥

¥

¥

1,928

—

—

—

—

—

1,670

3,598

—

—

—

—

—

—

5

3,603

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

Number of
shares of

common stock
Common

stock
Additional

paid-in capital
Retained
earnings

 Unrealized
holding gains
on securities

Adjustments on
foreign currency

statement translation
Treasury

stock

Balance at March 31, 2004 ..

Net income .........................

Adjustment due to increase in 

consolidated subsidiaries..  

Cash dividends paid ...........

Bonuses to directors...........

Increase due to valuation of 

securities .........................

Adjustments on foreign currency 

statement translation ......

Increase in treasury stock...

Balance at March 31, 2005 ..

$

$

 133,570

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

133,570

81,144,372

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

81,144,372

$

$

 159,546

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

159,546

(  )

(  )

$

$

836,298

38,063

       3,957

9,520

267

—

—

—

868,531

$

$

25,838

—

—

—

—

4,144

—

—

29,982

(  )

(  )

$

$

19,488

—

—

—

—

—

2,378

—

 17,110

(  )

(  )

(  )

$

$

33,639

—

—

—

—

—

—

51

33,690

NICHICON CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity
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Operating activities:

Income before income taxes and minority interest ...

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization ...............................

Net loss on sales or disposal of property, plant and equipment...

Reversal of accrued severance indemnities ..........

Interest and dividend income.................................

Interest expenses...................................................

(Increase) decrease in notes and accounts receivable...

(Increase) decrease in inventories..........................

Decrease in notes and accounts payable ..............

Increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities....

Other, net................................................................

Sub total ......................................................

Interest and dividend income received ..................

Interest expenses paid ...........................................

Income taxes paid..................................................

Net cash provided by operating activities ................

Investing activities:

Payments for purchase of short-term investments 

and investments in securities.................................

Proceeds from sales of short-term investments

and investments in securities.................................

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment ...

Decrease in time deposits .........................................

Short-term loans to an affiliate ..................................

Long-term loans to an affiliate ...................................

Decrease in other investments ..................................

Net cash used in investing activities .........................

Financing activities:

Payments for purchase of treasury stock..................

Cash dividends paid ..................................................

Other, net ...................................................................

Net cash used in financing activities.........................

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ...

Cash and cash equivalents of newly consolidated subsidiaries....

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year..........

For the year ended March 31,

Millions of Yen

For the year ended March 31,

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
(Note 3)

2005

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

2004 2005

¥

¥

6,354

8,808

169

122

330

5

848

930

592

388

145

13,047

321

6

786

12,576

14,894

11,572

8,273

12

540

700

725

12,098

5

1,068

1

1,074

187

409

14,208

271

14,070

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

¥

¥

5,484

9,737

433

6,954

277

12

219

2,603

248

1,192

800

13,001

284

12

1,699

11,574

17,675

12,333

3,533

0

1,425

—

2,195

8,105

1,670

1,035

34

2,739

925

195

14,403

—

14,208

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

(  )

$

$

59,406

82,345

1,579

1,139

3,082

51

7,928

8,696

5,533

3,630

1,348

121,981

3,003

51

7,350

117,583

139,249

108,188

77,351

109

5,049

6,545

6,783

113,114

51

9,984

7

10,042

1,749

3,824

132,839

2,529

131,544

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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NICHICON CORPORATION (the “Company”) and its domestic 
consolidated subsidiaries maintain their accounts and records in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Commercial 
Code (the “Commercial Code”) and Japanese Securities and 
Exchange Law, and in conformity with accounting principles and 
practices generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain 
respects as to application and disclosure requirements of 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The accounts of overseas subsidiaries consolidated with the 
Company are based on the financial statements prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) 

and practices prevailing in the countries where the subsidiaries were 
incorporated. No adjustments have been reflected in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements to present the 
accounts of the subsidiaries in compliance with Japanese GAAP. The 
financial statements have not been materially affected by the 
differences between the GAAP prevailing in these countries and 
Japanese GAAP.

Certain account balances, as disclosed in the basic consolidated 
financial statements in Japan, have been summarized or reclassified to 
the extent deemed necessary to enable presentation in a form which is 
more familiar to readers outside Japan.

1. Basis of Presenting the Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Principles of Consolidation
The Company had 20 subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 19 subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004. The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements include the accounts of the Company and 20 (19 for 2004) of its subsidiaries (together, the “Companies”), which are listed below:

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2004,NICHICON 
(KUSATSU) CORPORATION and NICHICON (KAMEOKA) 
CORPORATION , which were split from the Company during the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, have been included in 
consolidation.

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, NICHICON 
ELECTRONICS (TIANJIN) CO.,LTD., which was newly set up 
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, and TORISHIMA 
ELECTRIC WORKS LTD. ,the materiality of whose the impact on 
the consolidated financial statements increased, have been included in 
consolidation.

In addition, as NICHICON (DENDO) CORPORATION had 
been liquidated, it was excluded from the consolidation during the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

For the purpose of preparing the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements, all significant inter company transactions, 
account balances and unrealized profits among the Companies have 

been eliminated. The amounts of certain subsidiaries have been 
included in consolidation on the basis of fiscal periods ended within 
the three months prior to March 31.

The Company had no major unconsolidated subsidiaries and had 
11 and 12 affiliates as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively. The 
equity method is applied to the investments in one affiliate, 
SAMWHA ELECTRIC CO., LTD. since the total net income (the 
amount corresponding to equity) and retained earnings (the amount 
corresponding to equity) of the affiliates other than SAMWHA 
ELECTRIC CO., LTD. are not material to the consolidated result of 
total net income and total retained earnings, respectively.

The investments in the remaining affiliates are carried at cost.
NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE.LTD. changed the date of its 

fiscal year end from December 31 to March 31 effective from the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2004. Accordingly, the financial statements of 
this subsidiary for the 15 month period ended March 31, 2004, were 
included in the consolidation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION Japan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION Japan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON TANTALUM CORPORATION Japan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (ASAHI) CORPORATION Japan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION  Japan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION Japan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (FUKUI) CORPORATION Japan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (SHIGA) CORPORATION Japan 100.0% March 31
TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD. Japan 94.1% February End
NICHICON (AMERICA) CORP. U.S.A. 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD. China (Hong Kong) 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (EUROPE) LTD. United Kingdom 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. Singapore 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD. Malaysia 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD. Taiwan 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH Austria 100.0% March 31
NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD. Thailand 49.0% March 31
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD. China 100.0% December 31
NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. China 100.0% December 31
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (TIANJIN) CO.,LTD. China 100.0% December 31

Country and jurisdiction
of incorporationName

Equity ownership
percentage at

March 31, 2005 Fiscal year-end

NICHICON CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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(2) Translation of Foreign Currency Financial Statements
The accounts of the overseas consolidated subsidiaries are translated 
into Japanese yen by the methods prescribed under statements issued 
by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council of Japan. Under 
this method, all assets and liabilities are translated at current rates, 
while shareholders’ equity is translated at historical rates, and 
revenue and expense items are translated at the average rates during 
the year. The resulting translation adjustments are shown as 
“Adjustments on foreign currency statement translation” in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 

(3) Valuation of Securities
Effective from the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company and its 
domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted the accounting standard 
for financial instruments issued by the Business Accounting 
Deliberation Council of Japan on January 22, 1999. Following the 
standard, securities held by the Company and its domestic 
consolidated subsidiaries are classified as “held-to-maturity debt 
securities” or “Other securities”, which represent securities other than 
trading or “held-to-maturity debt securities”, based on the intent of 
holding each security for valuation. “Held-to-maturity debt 
securities” are stated at amortized cost. Marketable “Other securities” 
are stated at market value. Adjustments to market value as gains, on a 
one by one basis, are recorded as an increase in shareholders’ equity, 
net of tax, while adjustments to market value as losses, on a one by 
one basis, are charged to income for the year. The costs of their sales 
are determined by the moving average method. “Other securities” 
which are not marketable are principally stated at cost, cost being 
determined by the moving average method.

(4) Inventories
Finished goods and work in process are principally valued at cost 
determined by the average method. Other inventories are principally 
valued at cost determined by the moving-average method.

(5) Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation for the Company and its domestic consolidated 
subsidiaries is computed by the declining-balance method except for 
depreciation of buildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998, at rates 
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Depreciation of buildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998 for 
the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries is computed 
by the straight-line method at rates based on the above.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

  Buildings and Structures ............ from 7 to 50 years{Machinery and equipment ......... from 4 to 11 years

Depreciation for the overseas consolidated subsidiaries is 
principally computed by the straight-line method at rates based on the 
estimated useful lives of the assets.

Normal repairs and maintenance including minor renewals and 
improvements are charged to income as incurred. Gains or losses on 
the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the 
period of disposal.

(6) Capitalized Computer Software Costs
Capitalized computer software costs comprise costs of software used 
in the Companies’ business. Amortization of capitalized computer 
software costs, which are included in “Other” in investments and 
other assets, is computed using the straight-line method over 5 years, 
the estimated useful life of the assets.

(7) Foreign Currency Translation
Effective from the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company and its 
domestic consolidated subsidiaries have adopted the accounting 

standard for foreign currency transactions revised by the Business 
Accounting Deliberation Council of Japan on October 22, 1999, 
which required that all monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies, whether short-term or long-term, should be, in 
principle, translated into Japanese yen at the relevant exchange rates 
prevailing at the respective balance sheet dates.

(8) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provide for doubtful 
accounts principally at an amount computed based on the historical 
bad debt ratio during a certain reference period plus the estimated 
uncollected amount based on the analysis of individual accounts.

(9) Hedge Accounting
The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts on 
export transactions to hedge its exposure to fluctuation in foreign 
exchange rates. At the respective balance sheets dates, the forward 
foreign exchange contracts satisfying certain conditions are matched 
with receivables denominated in foreign currencies, which are 
translated into Japanese yen at the contracted rate of exchange. Gains 
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the forward 
foreign exchange contracts other than those described above are 
deferred on the balance sheet to the period in which the gains and 
losses on receivables hedged are recognized to match gains and losses 
on the forward foreign exchange contracts.

(10) Leases
Where the financing leases do not transfer ownership of the leased 
property to the lessee during the terms of the leases, the leased 
property is not capitalized and the related lease expenses are charged 
to income in the periods in which they are incurred, as per the 
statements issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council. 

(11) Accrued Severance Indemnities and Pension Plan
Under the terms of the Company’s retirement plan , employees of 
the Company with more than 3 years of service are generally entitled 
to receive lump-sum payments at the time of retirement.

The amount of the retirement benefit is, in general, determined 
based on the length of service, the cause of retirement, and the 
remuneration at the time of retirement.

Prior to January 1, 2004, the Company also had a contributory 
pension plan in connection with the Japanese government social 
welfare program which consists of a basic portion (including: a 
substitutive portion) requiring employee and employer contributions 
plus an additional portion established by the Company. 

Effective from January 1, 2004, the Company obtained approval 
for the return of the past benefit obligation and for the shift from an 
employee pension fund to a corporate pension fund on the same day. 
Consequently, the contributory pension plan which is held by the 
Company is a corporate pension fund which consists of above the 
mentioned additional portion.

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have a 
tax-qualified pension plan. The amount of severance indemnities to 
be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries is reduced by the benefits 
payable under these pension plans. Certain overseas consolidated 
subsidiaries have defined contribution pension plans.

On April 1, 2000, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries 
adopted the accounting standard for retirement benefits issued by the 
Business Accounting Deliberation Council of Japan on June 16, 1998. 
Following the standard, the amount of accrued severance indemnities 
for employees was provided based on the amount of projected benefit 
obligations minus pension plan assets at fair value at the end of the 
fiscal year.

The directors and statutory auditors of the Company are covered 
by a retirement benefit plan under which retiring directors and 
statutory auditors are entitled to receive lump-sum retirement 
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March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005

¥
¥

¥

¥

Short-term investments:
Government and corporate bonds ...........................

Investments in securities:
Equity securities........................................................
Government and corporate bonds ...........................
Other .........................................................................

7,862
7,862

9,253
26,431

143
35,827

2004

¥
¥

¥

¥

11,564
11,564

8,215
19,916

119
28,250

$
$

$

$

73,505
73,505

86,508
247,116

1,337
334,961

Short-term investments and investments in securities held by the Companies as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 is summarized as follows:

benefits. The amount of such benefits is determined based on the 
Company’s internal rules. The accrued severance indemnities for 
directors and statutory auditors represent the estimated amount to be 
paid if  all directors and statutory auditors retired at the balance sheet 
dates. 

On June 15, 2001, the Japanese government issued a new law(the 
defined benefit corporate pension law) concerning the benefit plan. 
This law allows a company, on approval by the Minister of Health, 
Labor and Welfare, to apply for an exemption from the benefit 
obligation and the amount of pension assets with regard to the 
substitutive portion of the employee pension fund to the government. 
In accordance with the new law, the Company obtained approval for 
the exemption from the relevant future benefit obligation on August 
20,2002 and for the return of the relevant past benefit obligation and 
the amount of pension assets on January 1,2004. The Company paid 
the returnable amount (minimum actuarial liability) to the 
government on March 25, 2004.

As a result, the gain on return of substitutive portion of the 
employees pension fund was ¥5,389 million and this was included in 
income for the year ended March 31, 2004.

(12) Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses are charged to income as 
incurred.

(13) Appropriation of Retained Earnings
Under the Commercial Code and the Articles of Incorporation of the 
Company, proposals by the Board of Directors for the appropriation 
of retained earnings (principally the payment of annual cash 
dividends) should be approved by a shareholders’ meeting, which 
must be held within three months of the end of each fiscal year. The 
appropriation of retained earnings reflected in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements for each fiscal year represents the 
appropriations which were approved by the shareholders’ meeting 
and disposed of during that year, but which related to the 
immediately preceding fiscal year.

The payment of bonuses to directors is made out of retained 
earnings instead of being charged to income of the year and 

constitutes a part of the appropriations referred to above.

(14) Net Income and Dividend per Share
Basic net income per share is based upon the weighted average 
number of shares of common stock outstanding during each year.

The Company has adopted the Financial Accounting Standard 
on “Accounting for Earnings per Share”.

The figure for diluted net income per share is not disclosed since 
there was no potential share of common stock that had a dilutive 
effect as of March 31, 2005 and 2004.

Cash dividends per share represent interim cash dividends paid 
and annual dividends declared as applicable to the respective years.

(15) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are composed of cash in hand, bank 
deposits that are able to be withdrawn on demand and highly liquid 
time deposits with an insignificant risk of changes in value and which 
have maturities of three month or less when purchased.

(16) Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets
On August 9, 2002, the Business Accounting Council in Japan issued 
“Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets”.  The 
standard requires that fixed assets be reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  An impairment 
loss shall be recognized in the income statement by reducing the 
carrying amount of impaired assets or a group of assets to the 
recoverable amount to be measured as the higher of net selling price 
or value in use.  

The standard shall be effective for fiscal years beginning April 1, 
2005.  However, earlier adoption is permitted for fiscal years 
beginning April 1, 2004 and for fiscal years ending between March 31, 
2004 and March 31, 2005.  

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries did not opt for early 
adoption of the above accounting standard for the year ended March 
31, 2005.The Company is calculating the effect of this adoption.

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in 
Japanese yen. The U.S. dollar amounts included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto represent the 
arithmetical results of translating yen into dollars at the rate of 
¥106.96 to U.S.$1, the effective rate of exchange at March 31, 2005. 

The inclusion of such dollar amounts is solely for the convenience of 
the reader and is not intended to imply that yen amounts have been or 
could be readily converted, realized or settled in dollars at the rate of 
¥106.96 to U.S.$1 or at any other rate.

3. United States Dollar Amounts

4. Short-term Investments and Investments in Securities
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Millions of Yen
Book value

per
Balance sheet

¥

Debt securities whose market values exceed their book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet
Government bonds...................................................
Corporate bonds.......................................................

9,190
23,667
32,857

Market
value

¥ 9,218
23,763
32,981

Difference

¥ 28
       96
      124

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Book value 

per
Balance sheet

$ 85,918
221,270
307,188

Market
value

$ 86,183
222,169
308,352

Difference

$ 265
899

1,164

¥

Debt securities whose market values do not exceed their book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet
Government bonds...................................................
Corporate bonds.......................................................

Total

302
1,134
1,436

34,293 ¥

302
1,119
1,421

34,402

(  )
(  )
(  )

¥

       1
      14
      15

109 $

2,830
10,603
13,433

320,621 $

2,824
10,465
13,289

321,641

(  )
(  )
(  )

$

6
138
144

1,020

Book value and market value information in respect of marketable “Held-to-maturity debt securities” as of March 31, 2005 is summarized as 
follows:

Millions of Yen

Acquisition
cost

¥

Securities whose book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet exceed their acquisition costs
Equity securities........................................................
Government and corporate bonds ...........................

2,845
100

2,945

Book value
per

Balance sheet

¥ 8,309
143

8,452

Difference

¥ 5,464
43

5,507

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Acquisition
cost

$ 26,602
935

27,537

Book value
per 

Balance sheet

$ 77,686
1,337

79,023

Difference

$ 51,084
402

51,486

¥

Securities whose book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet do not exceed their acquisition costs
Equity securities........................................................

Total
—

2,945 ¥
—

8,452 ¥
—

5,507 $
—

 27,537 $
—

79,023 $
—

51,486

Book value and acquisition cost information in respect of marketable “Other securities” as of March 31, 2005 is summarized as follows:

Millions of Yen

Cost of sales
Proceeds from

sales Loss on sales

Corporate bonds .................... ¥ 34 ¥ 34 ¥ 0

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Cost of sales
Proceeds from

sales Loss on sales

$ 318 $ 318 $ 0

“Held-to-maturity debt securities” sold during the year ended March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Reason for sale: Domestic subsidiary in the process of liquidation is obliged to sell their own holding “held-to-maturity debt securities”.

Millions of Yen

Other securities:
 Equity securities....................................................... ¥ 911

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

$ 8,514

The book values of the securities which are not marketable as of March 31, 2005 are mainly summarized as follows:

Government bonds.............
Corporate bonds.................

¥

¥

  1,100
  6,762
  7,862

¥

¥

8,392
17,939
26,331

¥

¥

—
100
100

The aggregate annual maturities of debt securities included in “Other securities” and “Held-to-maturity debt securities” outstanding as of March 
31, 2005 were as follows:

Maturities in
Millions of yen

2005 2006-2009 2010-2014
$

$

10,288
63,217
73,505

$

$

78,461
167,720
246,181

$

$

—
935
935

Maturities in
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2006-2009 2010-2014
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Millions of Yen

¥

Debt securities whose market values exceed their book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet
Government bonds...................................................
Corporate bonds.......................................................

4,484
12,267
16,751

¥ 4,489
12,289
16,778

¥ 5
           22
           27

¥

Debt securities whose market values do not exceed their book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet
Government bonds...................................................
Corporate bonds.......................................................

Total

4,525
10,204
14,729
31,480 ¥

4,519
10,186
14,705
31,483

(  )
(  )
(  )

¥

6
          18
          24

3

Book value and market value information in respect of marketable “Held-to-maturity debt securities” as of March 31, 2004 is as follows:

Book value per
Balance sheet Market value Difference

Millions of Yen

¥

Securities whose book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet exceed their acquisition costs
Equity securities........................................................
Government and corporate bonds ...........................

2,555
100

2,655

¥ 7,219
119

7,338

¥ 4,664
19

4,683

¥

Securities whose book values on the accompanying consolidated Balance sheet do not exceed their acquisition costs
Equity securities........................................................

Total
85

2,740 ¥
76

7,414
(  )

¥
    9

4,674

 Book value and acquisition cost information in respect of marketable “Other securities” as of March 31, 2004 is summarized as follows:

Acquisition cost
Book value per
Balance sheet Difference

Millions of Yen

Other securities:
Equity securities........................................................ ¥ 920

Book values of the securities which are not marketable as of March 31, 2004 are mainly summarized as follows:

Government bonds...................................................
Corporate bonds.......................................................

Millions of yen
Maturities in

2005-2008
¥

¥

5,481
14,435
19,916

¥

¥

3,528
8,036

11,564

2004

The aggregate annual maturities of debt securities included in “Other securities” and “held-to-maturity debt securities” outstanding as of 
March 31, 2004 were as follows:

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005
¥

¥

Finished goods.............................................................
Work in process ...........................................................
Raw materials and supplies .........................................

8,926
4,503
3,838

17,267

2004
¥

¥

8,170
3,889
3,958

16,027

$

$

83,456
        42,095
        35,882

161,433

Inventories as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the followings:

5. Inventories
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March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousand of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005

¥

¥

Forward foreign exchange contracts:
Foreign currency sales (US$)

Contract amounts.........................................................
Fair Value......................................................................
Unrealized loss .............................................................

     14,842
14,702
      140

2004

¥

¥

       327
       316
        11

$

$

    138,759
    137,452

  1,307

Forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

(  )

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005

¥

¥

Notional acquisition costs:
Machinery and equipment ........................................
Other .........................................................................

Less: accumulated depreciation ..................................

42
47
89
31
58

(  )

2004

¥

¥

71
27
98
60
38

(  )

$

$

393
443
836
293
543

(1) Payment of fees for financing leases where ownership of the leased 
assets is not transferred to the lease and which are not required to be 
capitalized, for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, were ¥27 
million ($253 thousand) and ¥34 million, respectively.

Additional information such as the notional acquisition costs 

and accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, 
requested by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council of Japan 
to be disclosed as not included in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets is as follows:

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005
¥

¥

Due within one year......................................................
Due after one year ........................................................

24
34
58

2004
¥

¥

17
21
38

$

$

227
316
543

The aggregate future lease payments under finance leases as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

The amount of notional acquisition costs and future lease payments 
under finance leases included the interest expenses portion. 

Notional depreciation expenses for the years ended March 31, 
2005 and 2004 which are not reflected in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income were ¥27 million and ¥34 million, 
respectively.

Notional acquisition costs means the costs characterized as the 
total lease payment including interest due to the immateriality of the 
leased property. Notional depreciation expense is calculated by the 
straight-line method over the terms of the lease based on notional 
acquisition costs, assuming that there is no scrap value.

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005
¥

¥

Due within one year......................................................
Due after one year ........................................................

 4
—
 4

2004
¥

¥

10
4

14

$

$

37
—
37

(2) The aggregate future lease payments under ordinary operating leases as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

6. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts on 
export transactions to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in foreign 
exchange rates. These hedging instruments are measured for 
effectiveness based on the movement amounts of positions hedged 

during the hedging terms. 
The Company’s management believes that there is no credit risk 

since these are executed with creditworthy financial institutions. 

7. Lease Commitments
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(  )

(  )

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005
¥

¥

Projected benefit obligations .......................................
Fair value of plan assets...............................................
Accrued severance indemnities for employees ...........

  14,739
  10,379

 4,360

(  )

(  )

2004
¥

¥

14,655
   10,195

4,460

(  )

(  )

$

$

137,805
          97,035

40,770

The following shows the reconciliation of projected benefit obligations to net liabilities for employees’ retirement benefits recognized on the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2005 and 2004:

(  )
(  )

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005
¥

¥

¥

Service cost..................................................................
Interest cost..................................................................
Expected return on plan assets ...................................
Amortization of actuarial differences............................
Extra retirement allowance paid temporarily................
Net periodic benefit costs ............................................
Gain on return of substitutive portion 

of the employees pension fund ................................
Total

570
278

  150
  49
198
847

—
847

(  )

(  )

2004
¥

¥

¥

 733
532

  183
382
480

1,944

5,389
3,445

(  )
(  )

$

$

$

5,333
2,595
1,404

458
1,850
7,916

—
7,916

The accrued severance indemnities for directors and statutory auditors amounting to ¥262 million ($2,445 thousand) and ¥248 million as of 
March 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively were excluded from the above schedule.

Components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

8. Accrued Severance Indemnities

9. Contingent Liabilities

The benefit obligations were determined using the discount rates of 
2.1% for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the expected 
rate of return on plan assets was 1.5% for the years ended March 31, 
2005 and 2004. The benefit obligations are attributed to periods based 
on years of service. Unrecognized past service cost and actuarial 
differences arising in the years are charged or credited to income for 
the years when they arise. The projected benefit obligations of certain 
subsidiaries are calculated using a simplified method, which is 
permitted for small size companies in conformity with the accounting 

standard for retirement benefits.
Based on the enforcement of the defined benefit corporate 

pension law, the Company obtained  approval for exemption from the 
future benefit obligation on August 20, 2002 and for the return of the 
past benefit obligation and the amount of pension assets with regard 
to the substitutive portion of the employees pension fund on January 
1, 2004. The Company paid the returnable amount (minimum 
actuarial liability) to the government on March 25, 2004, as described 
in Note 2 (11).

As of March 31, 2005, there was no contingent liability.
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(  )
(  )

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005
¥

¥

Market value in excess of costs ...................................
Deferred tax liabilities ...................................................
Others...........................................................................
Unrealized holding gains on securities, net of tax .......

5,507
2,225

75
3,207

(  )
(  )

2004
¥

¥

4,683
    1,892

28
2,763

(  )
(  )

$

$

51,485
   20,800

703
29,982

Unrealized holding gains on securities, net of tax in shareholders’ equity as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 are analyzed as follows:

For the year ended March 31,
Millions of Yen

For the year ended March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005
¥

¥

Freight charges ............................................................
Advertising....................................................................
Employees’ salary and bonuses...................................
Research and development expenses .........................
Others...........................................................................

2,592
161

3,287
768

4,697
11,505

2004
¥

¥

2,611
172

3,348
761

4,786
11,678

$

$

24,236
1,504

30,732
7,181

43,910
107,563

Selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 
2004 consisted of the following: 

10. Shareholders’ Equity

The Commercial Code in Japan requires the entirety of the issue price 
of new shares to be designated as stated capital.

By resolution of the board of directors, the Company capitalizes 
at least 50 % of the issue price of new shares and credits proceeds in 
excess of the amounts designated at stated capital to the capital 
reserve.

On October 1, 2001 the Commercial Code was revised, the face 
of share prices was abolition. The revised Commercial Code provides 
that an amount equal to 10% of cash dividends and directors’ and 
statutory auditors’ bonus and other appropriations of retained 
earnings paid out with respect to each financial period be 
appropriated as earned reserve, which is included in retained earnings, 
until such reserve equals 25% of the stated capital.

Legal reserves may be transferred to stated capital by resolution 
of the board of directors or maybe used to reduce a deficit with the 
approval of a shareholders’ meeting. In addition, these reserves may 
be available for dividends to the extent that these reserves do not fall 
bellow 25% of the stated capital.

Under the revised Commercial Code, the Company is allowed to 
repurchase its own shares by resolution of the shareholders’ meeting 
and the board of directors. On June 29, 2004 the articles of 
association were revised by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting, 
to allow the Company to repurchase its own shares.

The Company adopted a system through which directors, auditors, 
operating officers, executive officers, and executives of main affiliates 
of the Company are able to purchase ordinary shares. The stock 
options as of March 31, 2005 were as follows:

  Resolution of the shareholders meeting on June 29, 2000
The system enabled 17 employees of the Company (14 employees for 
forfeiture as of May 31, 2005) to purchase a total of 34 thousand 

ordinary shares (28 thousand for forfeiture as of May 31, 2005), and 
this option is exercisable from July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2005.
  Resolution of the shareholders meeting on June 28, 2001
The system enabled 4 directors and 22 employees of the Company (19 
employees for forfeiture as of May 31, 2005) to purchase a total of 52 
thousand ordinary shares (46 thousand for forfeiture as of May 31, 
2005), and this option is exercisable from July 1, 2003 to June 30, 
2006.
  Resolution of the shareholders meeting on June 27, 2002
The system enabled directors, auditors, executive officers, and 
executives of main affiliates of the Company to purchase a total of 
180 thousand ordinary shares (150 thousand for forfeiture as of May 
31, 2005), and this option is exercisable from July 1, 2004 to June 30, 
2007.
  Resolution of the shareholders meeting on June 27, 2003
The system enabled directors, auditors, executive officers, and 
executives of main affiliates of the Company to purchase a total of 
280 thousand ordinary shares (251 thousand for forfeiture as of May 
31, 2005), and this option is exercisable from July 1, 2005 to June 30, 
2008.
  Resolution of the shareholders meeting on June 29, 2004
The system enabled directors, auditors, executive officers, and 
executives of main affiliates of the Company to purchase a total of 
510 thousand ordinary shares (488 thousand for forfeiture as of May 
31, 2005), and this option is exercisable from July 1, 2006 to June 30, 
2009.
  Resolution of the shareholders meeting on June 29, 2005
The system enabled directors, auditors, executive officers, and 
executives of main affiliates of the Company to purchase a total of 
600 thousand ordinary shares, and this option is exercisable from July 
1, 2007 to June 30, 2010.

11. Unrealized Holding Gains on Securities

12. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
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March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005 2005

¥

¥

Deferred tax assets due to:
Accrued severance indemnities................................
Unrealized gain on inventories..................................
Accrued enterprise taxes..........................................
Operating loss carry-forwards for taxpurpose .........
Expenses on environmental  protection measures ..
Other .........................................................................

   
Deferred tax liabilities due to:  

Unrealized holding gains on “Other securities” ........
Other .........................................................................

Net deferred tax assets ................................................

1,605
242
112
29

485
1,041
3,514

2,225
221

2,446
1,068

2004

¥

¥

1,578
252
37

519
485
907

3,778

1,892
272

2,164
1,614

$

$

15,008
2,260
1,047

271
4,533
9,738

32,857

20,800
2,074

22,874
9,983

The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

(  )

(  )

March 31,
Millions of Yen

March 31,
Thousands ofU.S. Dollars

2005 2005

¥

¥

Current assets:
Deferred tax assets...................................................

Investments and other assets:
Deferred tax assets...................................................

Current liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities ...............................................

Long-term liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities ...............................................

1,618

351

      32

      869
1,068

(  )

(  )

2004

¥

¥

1,092

561

33

     6
1,614

(  )

(  )

$

$

 15,129

3,285

305

8,126
9,983

Net deferred tax assets were included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows:

2005

Normal cumulative statutory tax rate ...........................
Non-taxable entertainment expenses.......................
Dividends from the overseas consolidated 

subsidiaries ...........................................................
Per capital inhabitant tax ..........................................
Tax loss of subsidiaries ............................................
Future declining of the enterprise tax rate................
Other .........................................................................

Effective tax rate in the consolidated statements of 
income ......................................................................

(  )

40.4
   0.4

0.9
0.5

  11.1
   —
4.0

35.1

%

%

42.0
0.5

1.2
0.7

11.7
  1.2
  3.0

60.3

%

%

2004

Significant differences between the normal cumulative statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate in the consolidated statements of income 
for the year ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

13. Research and Development

Research and development expenditures included in Cost of sales and Selling, general and administrative expenses were ¥2,023 million
 ($ 18,916 thousand) and ¥2,213 million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

14. Income Taxes

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries are subject to a number of different taxes based on income, which in the aggregate 
indicate a normal cumulative statutory tax rate of approximately 42.0% for the year ended March 31, 2004, and 40.4% for the year ended March 
31, 2005. Foreign consolidated subsidiaries are subject to income taxes in the countries in which they operate.
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Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2005 2005

¥

¥

Losses on disposal of fixed assets ..............................
Expenses for special severance payments

for employees taking early retirement ......................
Losses on disposal of inventory...................................

—

—
—
—

2004
¥

¥

1,400

580
370

2,350

$

$

—

—
—
—

In the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2004, expenses on operation restructuring included in other income 
(expenses) consisted of the following:

Furthermore “Expenses on environmental protection measures” of  ¥1,200 million was related to raw material and finished goods of 
capacitors which were manufactured by the Company in the past.

Millions of Yen

Japan

¥

¥

¥

Sales:
Outside customers ...................................................
Intersegment.............................................................

Total sales ....................................................................
Operating costs and expenses ....................................
Operating income.........................................................

Assets...........................................................................

56,277
39,527
95,804
90,213
 5,591

100,729

United States
of America

¥

¥

¥

11,024
4

11,028
11,015

13

7,924

Asia

¥

¥

¥

31,593
1,932

33,525
33,162

363

20,415

Other

¥

¥

¥

5,202
11

5,213
4,990

223

2,022

(  )
(  )
(  )

Elimination
and

corporate

¥

¥

¥

—
41,474
41,474
41,598

124 

24,789

Consolidated

¥

¥

¥

104,096
—

104,096
97,782
6,314

155,879

The foreign operations of the Companies for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were summarized as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2005

Millions of Yen

Japan

¥

¥

¥

Sales:
Outside customers ...................................................
Intersegment.............................................................

Total sales ....................................................................
Operating costs and expenses ....................................
Operating income (loss) ...............................................

Assets...........................................................................

53,787
38,953
92,740
88,454
4,286

93,744

(  )

United States
of America

¥

¥

¥

11,366
14

11,380
11,382

2

8,125

(  )

Asia

¥

¥

¥

31,030
1,501

32,531
32,695

164

15,166

Other

¥

¥

¥

4,666
5

4,671
4,561

110

2,061

(  )
(  )
(  )

Elimination
and

corporate

¥

¥

¥

—
 40,473
40,473
40,861

388 

26,415

Consolidated

¥

¥

¥

100,849
—

100,849
96,231
4,618

145,511

Year ended March 31, 2004

15. Tax Assessment Based on Business Size

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, the Company recorded 
¥ 116 million ($ 1,088 thousand) of the value added portion and 
shareholders’ equity portion of corporate enterprise tax in “Selling 
general and administrative expenses” in accordance with the 

statement on “Practical Treatment Regarding Presentation of Tax 
Assessment based on Business Size in corporate enterprise tax on the 
Statement of income” (February 13, 2004, Accounting Standard 
Board of Japan Practical Measures Report No. 12).

16. Supplemental Expense Information

17. Segment Information

Segment information of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 is presented below:

(1) Industry segment
The Companies’ main operations are manufacturing and distributing 
capacitors and related products. The Companies’ operations by 
business segment for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 are 
not disclosed since the ratio of business other than the main 

operations described above to the total in respect of sales, operating 
income and assets is not material, being less than the 10% stipulated 
in the Japanese Disclosure Rule on Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

(2) Geographic segment
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Japan

$

$

$

Sales:
Outside customers ...................................................
Intersegment.............................................................

Total sales ....................................................................
Operating costs and expenses ....................................
Operating income.........................................................

Assets...........................................................................

526,149
369,554
895,703
843,428
52,275

941,741

United States
of America

$

$

$

103,063
42

103,105
102,983

122

74,090

Asia

$

$

$

295,378
18,056

313,434
310,038

3,396

190,866

Other

$

$

$

48,641
104

48,745
46,657
2,088

18,905

(  )
(  )
(  )

Elimination
and

corporate

$

$

$

—
387,756
387,756
388,914

1,158

231,762

Consolidated

$

$

$

973,231
—

973,231
914,192
59,039

1,457,364

Year ended March 31, 2005

Unallocated corporate assets included in “Elimination and corporate” were ¥46,641 million ($436,057 thousand) and ¥42,465 million as of 
March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Millions of Yen

¥Sales to foreign customers ..........................................
Consolidated sales.......................................................
Ratio of sales to foreign customers 

to consolidated sales................................................

11,036
—

10.6%

¥ 39,413
—

37.9%

¥ 5,647
—

5.4%

56,096
104,096

53.9%

¥

United States
of America Asia Other Total

Sales to foreign customers for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Year ended March 31, 2005

Millions of Yen

¥Sales to foreign customers ..........................................
Consolidated sales.......................................................
Ratio of sales to foreign customers 

to consolidated sales................................................

11,379
—

11.3%

¥ 37,761
—

37.4%

¥ 5,301
—

5.3%

¥ 54,441
100,849

54.0%

United States
of America Asia Other TotalYear ended March 31, 2004

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

$Sales to foreign customers ..........................................
Consolidated sales.......................................................
Ratio of sales to foreign customers 

to consolidated sales................................................

103,179
—

10.6%

$ 368,485
—

37.9%

$ 52,791
—

5.4%

$ 524,455
973,231

53.9%

United States
of America Asia Other TotalYear ended March 31, 2005

(3) Sales to foreign customers
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Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2005

¥Net income per share -Basic........................................
 -Diluted .....................................

51.46
—

2004
¥ 27.78

—
$ 0.48

—

The amounts of net income per share for the year ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

The figure of diluted net income per share is not applicable since there was no potential share of common stock that had a dilutive effect as of 
March 31, 2005 and 2004.

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S .Dollars
2005 2005

¥
Net income applicable to shareholders of 

common stock.......................................................... 4,036

2004

¥ 2,164 $ 37,733

The amounts and numbers used for the basic net income per share computation for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Thousands of shares
2005

Weighted average number of shares of common stock... 78,430

2004
79,322

The following figures are potential shares of common stock that were excluded from the net income per share computation because they had 
no dilutive effect.

Thousands of shares
2005

Warrant for stock option ..............................................
Treasury stock for stock option ...................................

889
74

2004
        460
        346

18. Amount Per Share

19. Subsequent Event

At the 70th shareholders’meeting of the Company held on June 29, 
2005, the payment of cash dividends (¥8.5 or $0.08 per share) and 

directors’bonuses, which amounted to ¥666 million ($6,233 thousand) 
and ¥32 million ($299 thousand), respectively was approved.
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NICHICON 
CORPORATION and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed 
in Japanese Yen.  These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements 
based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. 
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated 
financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of NICHICON CORPORATION and 
its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations 
and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in Japan.

The amounts expressed in U.S. dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of the 
reader, have been translated on the basis set forth in Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements.

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
NICHICON CORPORATION

ChuoAoyama PricewaterhouseCoopers

Osaka, Japan
June 29, 2005

Report of independent auditors
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NICHICON TANTALUM CORPORATION
690-2, Miozato, Adogawa-cho, Takashima-shi, Shiga Pref.,
520-1215 Japan
TEL.81-740-32-1250  FAX.81-740-32-1504
Capital Stock : 316 million yen
Product line : Solid tantalum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS16949 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
15-1, 2-chome, Kitakose-cho, Kameoka-shi, Kyoto Pref.,
621-0811 Japan
TEL.81-771-22-5541  FAX.81-771-29-2010
Capital Stock : 80 million yen
Product line : Hybrid ICs, Circuit modules, Positive thermistors “Posi-R”
ISO 9001 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
1-11-2 Shimoyoro, Ohno-shi, Fukui Pref., 912-0095 Japan
TEL.81-779-66-0333  FAX.81-779-66-0312
Capital stock : 80 million yen
Product line : Aluminum electrolytic capacitors (Miniature-sized type)
ISO 9001, ISO/TS16949 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
3-1, Yagura 2-chome, Kusatsu-shi, Shiga Pref., 525-0053 Japan
TEL.81-77-563-1181  FAX.81-77-563-1208
Capital stock : 80 million yen
Product line : Capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities,

Capacitor-applied system and equipment
ISO 9001 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (ASAHI) CORPORATION
120 Matoba, Hirasawa, Shiwa-cho, Shiwa-gun, Iwate Pref.,
028-3308 Japan
TEL.81-19-676-4511  FAX.81-19-676-6710
Capital Stock : 100 million yen
Product line : Aluminum electrolytic capacitors
(Miniature-sized type)
ISO 9001, ISO/TS16949 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
8-17-1, Kubo, Iwate-cho Iwate-gun, Iwate Pref., 028-4305 Japan
TEL.81-195-62-5311  FAX.81-195-62-3400
Capital Stock : 100 million yen
Product line : Aluminum electrolytic capacitors (Chip type)
ISO 9001, ISO/TS16949 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
35-1-1 Tada, Obama-shi, Fukui Pref., 917-0026 Japan
TEL.81-770-56-2111  FAX.81-770-56-2116
Capital Stock : 84 million yen
Product line : Switching power supplies
ISO 9001 & ISO14001 certified

Domestic : Overseas :

NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.
Empire Tower 15th Floor, Unit 1506, Tower 3, 195 South Sathorn Road,
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120, Thailand
TEL.66-2-670-0150  FAX.66-2-670-0153
Capital Stock : 20 million BAHT
Business line : Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (AMERICA) CORP.
927 East State Parkway, Schaumburg, Illinois 60173, U.S.A.
TEL.1-847-843-7500  FAX.1-847-843-2798
Capital Stock : 3 million US$
Business line : Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (HONGKONG) LTD.
Unit 308, Harbour Centre Tower 1, 1 Hok Cheung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
TEL.852-2363 4331  FAX.852-2764 1867
Capital Stock : 5 million HK$
Business line : Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
238A Thomson Road, #12-01/02, Novena Square, Singapore 307684
TEL.65-64815641  FAX.65-64816485
Capital Stock : 8 million SP$
Business line : Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
Room 1406-1408, Orient International Plaza (Part C) 85 Lou Shan Guan Road,
Shanghai, 200336 China
TEL.86-21-6278-7658  FAX.86-21-6278-7657
Capital Stock : 0.5 million US$
Business line : Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (TIANJIN) CO., LTD.
No.4 Xinghua Road, Xiqing Economic Development Zone,
Tianjin, 300381 China
TEL.86-22-8396-8930  FAX.86-22-8396-8931
Capital Stock : 20 million US$
Business line : Production and sales of solid tantalum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 certified

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.
Block 51-B, Wuxi National High & New Technology Industrial
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu, 214028 China
TEL.86-510-85218222  FAX.86-510-85221170
Capital Stock : 20 million US$
Business line : Production of aluminum electrolytic capacitors and switching 

power supplies, Sales of various kings of capacitors 
ISO 9001 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.
16F-12, No.6, Sec.4, Hsin-Yi Rd., Taipei, Taiwan
TEL.886-2-2708-0200  FAX.886-2-2708-0959
Capital Stock : 30 million NT$
Business line : Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH
Am Concorde Business Park C2 Top, Nr.14 2320 Schwechat, Austria
TEL.43-1-706-7932  FAX.43-1-706-7933
Capital Stock : 1 million EUR
Business line : Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (FUKUI) CORPORATION
Nichicon Technology Center, 4 Tsuchifugo, Ohno-shi, Fukui Pref.,
912-0805 Japan
TEL.81-779-65-8800  FAX.81-779-65-8801
Capital Stock : 100 million yen
Product line : Solid tantalum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 & ISO14001 certified

NICHICON (SHIGA) CORPORATION
3-1, Yagura 2-chome, Kusatsu-shi, Shiga Pref., 525-0053 Japan
TEL.81-77-563-1181  FAX.81-77-563-1208
Capital Stock : 50 million yen
Product line : Solid tantalum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 & ISO14001 certified

TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.
3-1, Yagura 2-chome, Kusatsu-shi, Shiga Pref., 525-0053 Japan
TEL.81-077-562-0891   FAX.81-077-562-0809
Capital Stock : 30 million yen
Product and Business line : Various kinds of power transformers 
and reactors
ISO 9001 certified
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NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.
No.4 Jalan P/10, Kawasan Perusahaan Bangi,
43650 Bandar Baru Bangi, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
TEL.60-3-89250678  FAX.60-3-89250858
Capital Stock : 63 million M$
Business line : Production of aluminum electrolytic capacitors

(Chip, Miniature-sized and large can type), Sales of various kings of capacitors
ISO 9002, ISO/TS16949 & ISO14001 certified



Authorized number of shares
Issued number of shares
Number of shareholders
Listings

137,000,000 shares
  81,144,372 shares
8,788
First section, Tokyo Stock Exchange
First section, Osaka Securities Exchange
First section, Nagoya Stock Exchange

8,112

5,521

4,095

3,370

3,090

2,448

2,200

1,915

1,391

1,163

10.4

7.0

5.2

4.3

3.9

3.1

2.8

2.4

1.8

1.5

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Investment trust account)

Nippon Life Insurance Company

The Bank of Kyoto, Ltd.

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

UFJ Bank Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Nobuko Hirai

CBNY-Third Avenue International Val Fund 

The Bank of New York JASDEC Treaty Account 

Common stock price range

Investor information
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Corporate data

Major shareholders
Number of 
shares held

(thousand) 

Percentage of 
shares held

(%) 

As of 31 March, 2005

Ippei  Takeda

Hidetaka Kurumizawa
Tadayoshi Nishizawa
Sachito Umemura

Keiji Nishihata

Kouzo Yamasaki 

August 1, 1950

14,286 million yen (As of March 31, 2005)

5,398(Consolidated)     1,098(Non-consolidated)
 (As of March 31, 2005)

Tatou Iwasa
Sachihiko Araki

Yasuhiko Kumata

President & C.E.O.

Managing Director

Standing Auditor

Auditor

Date of 
Establishment

Capital Stock

Number of 
Employees

Board of Directors Factories

Karasumadori Oike-agaru, 
Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto, 604-0845 Japan
TEL.81-75-231-8461  FAX.81-75-256-4158

Head Office

As of 29 June, 2005

As of 1 October, 2005

5-5, 2-Chome, Hamamatsu-cho, Minato-ku, Tokyo,  
105-0013 Japan
TEL.81-3-5473-5611   FAX.81-3-5473-5651

18F, Nishiki Park Bldg. 4-3, Nishiki 2-chome, 
Naka-ku, Nagoya, 460-0003 Japan
TEL.81-52-223-5581   FAX.81-52-220-1839

Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto, 
604-0845 Japan
TEL.81-75-241-5370   FAX.81-75-231-8467

Sapporo, Nagano, Okayama, Fukuoka

TOKYO SALES 
OFFICE

NAGOYA SALES 
OFFICE  

WEST JAPAN 
SALES OFFICE

Sales Branches

Offices

4085 Toyoshina, Azumino-shi, Nagano Pref., 399-8205 Japan
TEL.81-263-72-2830   FAX.81-263-72-7140
Product line : Aluminum electrolytic capacitors (Large can type),

Electric double layer capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS16949 & ISO14001 certified 

1284-2, Kitahotaka Hotaka, Azumino-shi, Nagano Pref., 
399-8302 Japan
TEL.81-263-82-2510   FAX.81-263-82-7536
Product line : Electrode foil for aluminum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 & ISO14001 certified 

Yashiro, Ohmachi-shi, Nagano Pref., 398-0003 Japan
TEL.81-261-21-3200   FAX.81-261-21-3206
Product line : Electrode foils for aluminum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 & ISO14001certified 

Nichicon Technology Center, 4 Tsuchifugo, Ohno-shi, Fukui Pref., 
912-0805 Japan
TEL.81-779-65-8000   FAX.81-779-65-8911
Product line : Electrode foils for aluminum electrolytic capacitors 
ISO 9001 & ISO14001certified

5-5, 2-Chome, Hamamatsu-cho, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 105-0013 Japan
TEL.81-3-3432-6561   FAX.81-3-3437-5769
Product line : Development & design for switching power supplies
ISO 9001 certified

NAGANO
FACTORY

HOTAKA
FACTORY

OHMACHI 
FACTORY

TOMITA
FACTORY

POWER
SUPPLY
DIVISION

As of 1 October, 2005



Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto, 604-0845, Japan
TEL. 81-75-231-8461   FAX. 81-75-256-4158

URL http://www.nichicon.co.jp/
         http://www.nichicon.com

Printed on 100% recycled paper.This calalog is printed with
environmentally friendly soy ink.


	Cover
	Profile
	Financial highlights
	To our shareholders
	Global operations
	Review of operation by product segment
	Capacitors for electronics
	Circuit products
	Capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities/others

	Approach to environmental conservation activities
	News & Topics
	Research and development activities
	Risk information
	Financial section
	Financial review
	Consolidated balance sheets
	Consolidated statements of income
	Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity
	Consolidated statements of cash flows
	Notes to the consolidated financial statements
	Report of independent auditors

	Consolidated subsidiaries
	Corporate data/Investor information



